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NOTICE OF 4t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the members of
Tumakuru Smart City Limited (“the Company”) will be held at a shorter notice on Thursday, 30t
September 2021 at 3.15 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) at ICMCC Centre, Sri
Krishnarajendra Town Hall, Tumakuru City Corporation Premises, Tumakuru - 572102 to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021, together with the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 including audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon along with all annexures as laid before this
Annual General Meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To consider appointment of a Director in place of Shri. Rakesh Singh 1.AS. (DIN:
00828166) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder, Shri. Rakesh Singh L.A.S. (DIN: 00828166) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed
as Nominee Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the
above resolution.”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. B B Cauvery LA.S. (DIN: 08715278) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder, Smt. B B Cauvery L.AS. (DIN: 08715278) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
Nominee Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the above
resolution.”

4. To appoint a Director in place of Shri. Shakeel Ahmad Sharief (DIN: 08584733) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder, Shri. Shakeel Ahmad Sharief (DIN: 08584733) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed
as Nominee Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the above
resolution.”

5. To ratify the appointment M/s. Belur & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore
(BA0675), nominated by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 and fix the
remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and as amended from time to time including any statutory enactment or
modification thereof, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
ratify the appointment of M/s. Belur & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (BA0675),
nominated by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the financial year 2021-22 till the conclusion of the 5t Annual General
Meeting of the Company at a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- plus GST plus Out of Pocket
expenses to be incurred by the Auditors.”

By order of the Board
For Tumakuru Smart City Limited

Sd/-
Date: 30.09.2021 B T Rangaswamy K.M.A.S.
Place: Tumakuru Managing Director

DIN: 08301675



Notes:

1.

In view of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General
Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13.01.2021 read with General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th
May, 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), has allowed the Companies to
convene their Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM) subject to compliance of the various conditions mentioned
therein and also send notice of the Meeting and other correspondences related thereto,
through electronic mode. The 4th Annual General Meeting of the Company is being convened
and conducted in compliance with the MCA Circulars and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

There are no Special Businesses to be transacted at the 4t Annual General Meeting and
hence the Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not
annexed to the Notice.

AGM is proposed to be held at a shorter notice. Members are requested to convey their
consent as required under proviso to section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 either by way
of letter or by sending an email to smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com.

As per the Companies Act 2013, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/ her behalf. However, since the 4t
Annual General Meeting of the Company is being convened through Video Conferencing as
per the MCA Circulars, the facility for appointment of proxy by the members is not available
and hence the Proxy Form is not annexed to this notice.

The facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open at least 15 minutes before the time
scheduled to start the meeting and will be open till the expiry of 15 minutes after such
scheduled time.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through Video Conferencing will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the attendance of the members shall be reckoned accordingly. No separate
attendance form is being enclosed with this notice.

The documents related to matters set out in the notice shall be open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours (9.00 AM to 6.00 PM) on
all working days up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Corporate / Institutional Members are required to send legible scanned certified true copy
of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter, etc., together with attested
specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized representative(s), at e-mail id:
smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com.

Members are required to participate in the AGM through Google Meet platform and the
instructions relating thereto are provided separately in the Notice.



10. The Members will be allowed to pose questions during the course of the Meeting. The
queries can also be given in advance at smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com.

11. Members are requested to notify the Company immediately of any change in their address
including email ID.

12. During the meeting where a poll on any item is required, the members shall cast their vote
on the resolutions only by sending emails to voting.tscl@gmail.com through their registered
email ID upon proposal of the agenda during the meeting. The members are requested to
mention the agenda number, subject of the agenda item and their assent/dissent to the

same in the email.

13. The place of the AGM for statutory purposes shall be ICMCC Centre, Sri Krishnarajendra
Town Hall, Tumakuru City Corporation Premises, Tumakuru - 572102. As the AGM is being
convened through Video Conferencing no route map is attached to the notice.

14. The Chairman may decide to conduct the voting by show of hands unless a demand for poll
is made by any member.

By order of the Board
For Tumakuru Smart City Limited

Sd/-
Date: 30.09.2021 B T Rangaswamy K.M.A.S.
Place: Tumakuru Managing Director

DIN: 08301675

Instructions for participating in the AGM through Video Conferencing:
1. Members are required to open the below link on their browser and click on join meeting.

https://meet.google.com/uzt-aktg-not

2. Upon giving access by the host, members will be able to see the participants.

3. Members are advised to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection in order to participate in the
AGM through VC in a smooth manner.

4. Members who require technical assistance or support before or during the AGM are
requested to contact Company Secretary of the Company at Mobile +91 9113689705 or they

may write to smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com

5. For the ease of participation, the members and participants are allowed to pose questions
concurrently or given time to submit questions in advance at the designated email address of

the Company i.e. smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com


mailto:voting.tscl@gmail.com
https://meet.google.com/uzt-aktq-not
mailto:smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com
mailto:smartcitytumakuru@gmail.com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2020-21

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT of
TUMAKURU SMART CITY LIMITED along with Audited Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31st March 2021, Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2021 along with Independent Auditors’
Report thereon.

1. PRELUDE:

Tumakuru is one of the 40 cities selected in the Second Round of challenge for selection of
cities to implement the prestigious Smart City Mission Programme of the Government of India. A
Special Purpose Vehicle “Tumakuru Smart City Limited” was incorporated on 06.02.2017 to
design, appraise, sanction and implement the projects identified under SCP.

The Company has achieved significant success in 2020-21 in spite of adverse climatic
condition and Covid-19, in meeting its objective by completion of 27% of the projects, while 72%
of the projects are in ongoing stage, which are expected to be completed before March 2022. Thus
2020-21 has been an “Year of Accelerated Progress” while the coming year 2021-22 will
witness culmination of its efforts to ensure completion of many of the projects identified in the
Smart City Proposal.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Section 129 of the Companies
Act 2013, which form part of this Annual Report. The financial statements of the Company show
that the Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 2,02,579 against a loss of Rs. 1,89,25,702 before tax in
the previous year as detailed hereunder:

(InRs.)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Total Income 4,00,04,512 78,48,882
Total Expenses 4,02,07,091 2,67,74,584
Profit before Tax -2,02,579 -1,89,25,702
Deferred Tax/ Tax Expenses -92,858 -3,17,106
Net Profit/Loss after Tax -1,09,721 -1,86,08,596

3. DIVIDEND:

Due to inadequacy of profits, the Board is unable to recommend any dividend for the year
ended 31st March 2021.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

Due to inadequacy of profits, no amount is transferred to Reserves.
5. CAPITAL:

The authorized share capital of the company as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 200 Crores
(Rupees Two hundred Crores) with two crores shares of Rs. 100 each.



As on date of Financial Statements i.e. 31.03.2021, the Company’s subscribed and paid up
capital is Rs. 10.00 lakhs only divided into 10,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each. The entire
subscribed capital is mobilized as subscription to Memorandum of Association at the time of
incorporation of the company.

6. RELEASE OF FUNDS BY THE GOVERNMENT OF INDIA AND MATCHING GRANT BY THE
GOVERNMENT OF KARNATAKA:

As per Smart City Mission guidelines, the Central Government will provide Rs. 100 Crores
per year to each city, subject to fulfillment of SCM guidelines for a period of five years with equal
contribution by the State Government. Accordingly up to 31.03.2020, the Company had received
Rs. 196 crores from the Government of India (Rs. 186 crores towards projects grants and Rs. 10
crores towards A&OE grants) and the matching grant of Rs. 111 crores (Rs. 107 crores towards
project grants and Rs. 04 crores towards A&OE grants) was received from Government of
Karnataka. Thus there was a balance of Rs. 85 crores.

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company has received Rs. 98 crores from the
Government of India (Rs. 93 crores towards project grants and Rs. 05 crores towards A&OE
grants) and the Matching Grant of Rs. 186 crores (Rs. 169 crores towards project grants and Rs.
17 crores towards A&OE grants) from the Government of Karnataka including Rs. 85 crores of
previous year. Hence as on 31.03.2021 the pending release of matching grant by the Government
of Karnataka is only Rs. 3.00 crores towards project grant.

7. THE BOARD:
A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company’s Board is comprised of professional and highly qualified officials heading
the various line departments in Government of Karnataka besides four public representatives
from the Tumkur City Corporation. Two Independent Directors, experts in technology and finance
have also form part of the Board which provided strategic guidance to the Company in achieving
its objective of transforming Tumakuru to a Smart City.

During the year under review i.e.,, 2020-21, the following changes have happened in the

Board:
S| Name of the Name of the Outgoing Name of the Incoming Date of
: Department/Board/ Director with Effective | Director with Effective Board
No. . - -
Designation Date Date Meeting
1 Worshipful Mayor, Smt. Fareeda Begum Shri. B G Krishnappa 06.03.2021
Tumakuru City Corporation (w.ef. 26/02/2021) (w.e.f. 03/03/2021) T
2 Deputy Mayor, Tumakuru Smt. Shashikala Smt. Nazima Bi 06.03.2021
City Corporation (w.ef.26/02/2021) (w.e.f.09/03/2021) o
Managing Director,
3 ﬁi;gi:?gjtgssan Ms. Charulata Somal 1.As. Dr. M T Reju LAS. 18.12.2020
Development and Finance (w.e.f.08/12/2020) (w.e.f. 18/12/2020)
Corporation Limited
Managing Director, . .
4 | Karnataka Urban Water D(;,]eRfa‘&S/}(l;‘%%rzlgj& S}(’Vr;';; }11 iv} 5{;1;;3;51;.5. 07.10.2020
Supply and Drainage Board T T
5 Deputy Commissioner, Dr. K Rakesh Kumar 1As. Shri. Y S Patil 1As. 06.03.2021
Tumakuru District (w.e.f. 13/02/2021) (w.e.f.15/02/2021) T




6 Commissioner, Tumakuru Shri. T Bhoobalan 14As. Smt. Renuka kMAS. 12.08.2020
City Corporation (w.e.f. 29/06/2020) (w.e.f. 15/07/2020) T
; Shri. B T Rangaswamy
7 | Managing Director, TSCL Shri. T Bhoobalan Las. KMAS. 12.08.2020

B) CHANGE IN THE INCUMBENCY OF MANAGING DIRECTOR:

The following changes in the incumbency of the Managing Director have happened:

Sl. | Outgoing Managing | Incoming Managing Government Order/ Board Meeting
No. Director with Director with Notification where
effective date effective date appointment/
cessation
Ratified
e Government of Karnataka
Notification No. DPAR 147
SAS 2019 dated
29.06.2020
e Office  Memorandum No.
Shri. T Bhoobalan 1as. EEFA'SB T Rangaswamy | &.0300.8.2/200,,00)/ 12.08.2020
(w.e.f.29/06/2020) (wef 30/06,/2020) 24©0%/396/2019-20 dated e
30.06.2020
e Government of Karnataka
Notification No. <& 213
AT 2020 dated
16.07.2020

C) COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AS ON 31.03.2021:

Consequent upon the above changes, the Board of Directors of the Company as on

31.03.2021 consisted of the following:

I\S;:; Name of Director Designation DIN
I. Nomination by Govt. of Karnataka:
Shri. Rakesh Singh 1.as.
Additional Chief Secretary to Government of Karnataka, .
1 Water Resources Department and Urban Development Chairman 00828166
Department
Dr. M T Reju 1As.
Managing Director, Nominee
2 Karnataka Urban Infrastructure Development and Director 09001848
Finance Corporation Limited
Smt. B B Cauvery LAsS. Nominee
3 Director, Directorate of Municipal Administration Director 08715278
Shri. T HM Kumar 1As. Nominee
4 | Managing Director, Karnataka Urban Water Supply and . 07171390
; Director
Drainage Board
Shri. M B Rajesh Gowda 1.As. Nominee
5 | Managing Director, Bangalore Electricity Supply . 06917336
o Director
Company Limited
Shri. Y S Patil 1as. Nominee
6 Deputy Commissioner, Tumakuru District Director 06569237




7 | Shri. BT Rangaswamy KMAS. Managing 08301675
Director
Independent
8 | Dr. Rekha Jagannath . 08248612
Director
9 | Shri. VVR Sastry Independent | 57675
Director
II. Nomination by Government of India:
10 | Shri. Bhupendra Bahuguna css. Nominee 07970704
Director
III. Nomination by Urban Local Body:
Shri. B G Krishnappa Nominee
11 Worshipful Mayor, Tumakuru City Corporation Director 09089533
Smt. Nazima Bi Nominee
12 Deputy Mayor, Tumakuru City Corporation Director 09098874
Smt. Renukakm.As. Nominee
13 Commissioner, Tumakuru City Corporation Director 08795006
Shri. Shakeel Ahmad Sharief, Nominee
14 Corporator, Ward No. 12, Tumakuru City Corporation Director 08584733
Smt. Deepashree H M, Nominee
15 Corporator, Ward No. 04, Tumakuru City Corporation Director 08584709

D) BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year 2020-21, five Board Meetings were held, as detailed here under, and the
intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under section 173(1) of
Companies Act 2013. The Director-wise details of attendance in the Board Meetings are furnished
in Annexure .

SL. Board No. of Directors

No. Meeting | Date of Meeting Present
No. (Out of 15)

1 23 15.05.2020 12

2 24 12.08.2020 13

3 25 07.10.2020 14

4 26 18.12.2020 13

5 27 06.03.2021 13

E) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Audit Committee of the Board was constituted with the approval of Board in its 10t
meeting held on 20.10.2018, as per Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and Article 14.14
of the Articles of Association. The following are the members of the Committee as on
31.03.2021:

Shri. Y S Patil 145,

Deputy Commissioner, Chairman of the

1 Tumakuru District & Committee
Director, Tumakuru Smart City Limited
Dr. Rekha Jagannath

2 | Independent Director, Member

Tumakuru Smart City Limited




Shri VVR Sastry
3 | Independent Director, Member
Tumakuru Smart City Limited

Pursuant to change of the Deputy Commissioner, Tumakuru District, who is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of TSCL, Shri. Y S Patil 1A.S. was appointed as the Chairman
of the Committee in place of Dr. K Rakesh Kumar 1.A.S. with effect from 15.02.2021.

The Audit Committee met one time during the Financial Year 2020-21 ie. on
31.07.2020 with all the members of the Committee present at the meeting.

b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted with the
approval of Board in its 12th meeting held on 05.01.2019, in terms of section 178 of
Companies Act 2013 and Article 14.14 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The following are the members of the committee as on 31.03.2021:

1 | Dr.M T Reju 1as,

Managing Director,

Karnataka Urban Infrastructure Development
and Finance Corporation and Director,
Tumakuru Smart City Limited.

2 | Dr. Rekha Jagannath,

Independent Director, Member
Tumakuru Smart City Limited.
3 | Shri V.V.R. Sastry,
Independent Director, Member
Tumakuru Smart City Limited.

Chairman of the
Committee

Pursuant to change of Managing Director of KUIDFC who is the Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of TSCL, Dr. M T Reju LA.S. was appointed as the
Chairman of the Committee in place of Ms. Charulata Somal LA.S. with effect from 18.12.2020.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has not met during the F.Y. 2020-21.

8. PROJECT MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS:

In terms of the Mission Guidelines, the SPV may appoint Project Management Consultants
(PMCQ) for Designing, Developing, Managing and Implementation of the projects. Accordingly, in
April 2017 the company has appointed a consortium of Project Management Consultants
consisting of:

ii. M/s IPE Global Private Limited, New Delhi-Leader of the Consortium,
iii. M/s Grant Thornton India LLP-Consortium Member
iv. M/s Aryavartha Design Consultants-Consortium Member

The Project Management Consultants are assisting Tumakuru Smart City in design phase
and implementation phase and the existing agreement is valid for 5 years and ending on
16.04.2022.

Further, in order to accelerate the implementation of the projects and also ensure that the
specialized projects meet the requirements, the Board decided to seek the support of the
concerned Line Departments to take up designing and implementation of the following projects.

9



The DPR’s were prepared by the Line Departments, tender process was held in line with the
guidelines in Advisory 15 of Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs and the implementation was
also supervised by them.

PROJECTS DESIGNED & IMPLEMENTED BY LINE DEPARTMENTS

SL. Present
No Name of the Project Implementing Agency Status of
) Project
Intervention and Additional
Improvement to 24x7 water supply
a) Filling up of Hemavathi Water from Completed
Bugudanahalli to Amanikere Karnataka Water Supply and p
01 |b) Pumping of Impounded water at | Drainage Board
Amanikere to water treatment plant at PN Completed
Palya for treatment and distribution
c) Filling up Hemavathi water from Oneoin
Gangasandra Tank to Maralur Tank §015
02 Establishment of Trauma Centre at District | Health & Family Welfare Ongoing
Hospital Premises Department, GoK
03 Redevelopment of MG Stadium at | Department of Sports and Ongoing
Tumakuru Youth Empowerment, GoK
Integrated Bus Terminal Redevelopment Karnataka State Road .
04 . ) Ongoing
Transportation Corporation

9. THE SMART CITY PROPOSAL:

The Smart City Proposal consisted of projects for Area Based Development spread over
the identified wards i.e. ward no. 4,5,14,15,16,19 and part of 7, which is called “ABD Area” for
implementation of majority of the projects. Besides, the Mission Guidelines also stipulates
implementation of few projects especially IT projects across the city (Pan City). Thus Smart City
Proposal is a combination of projects in the compact ABD areas to create a replicable
model which will act like a light house to other aspiring wards/cities and Pan city projects
so that all the city residents feel there is something in it for them also.

The finalized list of projects being implemented based on the funding mechanism is
classified as:

a) Smart City Mission projects: Funded out of Project Funds of SCM
b) PPP Projects: Funded through Public Private Partnership
c) Convergence projects: Project.in the city funded out of the regular departmental fund

Tumakuru City Corporation has originally, compiled the Smart City Proposal (SCP) at the
time of submission to Smart City Challenge-Round II in 2016. On selection of the City in Round I,
the Projects conceived in SCP were being implemented. Meanwhile, in Aug 2018, the MoHUA in
order to have better financial control, advised to finalize the list of projects undertaken under
Smart City Funds. Accordingly, the Revised Smart City Proposal was submitted to MoHUA with the
approval of Competent Authority.

The details of projects as per original SCP and revised SCP are as under:

10



Sl Source of Funding Original SCP -2016 | Revised SCP -2018
No. (Rs. In Cr) (Rs. In Cr)
01. | Smart City Mission 1000.00 1,179.38
02. | Public Private Partnership 344.00 208.00
03. | Convergence 883.00 549.00
Total 2227.00 1936.38

As per Mission Guidelines, the available project fund is Rs. 930 Crores. Accordingly, the
HPSC advised to restrict the tender plan to Rs. 930 Crores. Thus, the total cost of projects
implemented under SCM funds will be restricted to Rs. 930 Crores only.

10. PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED OUT OF SMART CITY MISSION FUNDS:

The status of the projects as on 31.03.2021 and latest position vis-a-vis the status as on
31.03.2020 is furnished before.

(Rs.In Cr)
31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.08.2021
Status No. of Work Order No. of Work No. of Work
Projects Amount Projects Order projects Order
Amount Amount
Completed 48 84.56 94 243.33 111 388.18
(09.22) (26.34) (41.87)
Ongoing 60 751.12 58 667.97 38 534.04
(81.93) (72.29) (57.60)
Tendered 08 14.18 05 12.65 01 4.97
(1.54) (1.37) (0.53)
DPR Stage 11 66.95 - - - -
(7.31)
Total 127 916.82 157 923.95 150 927.19
(100.00) (100.00) (100.00)
31.03.2020 31.08.2021

m Completed
B Ongoing
Tendered

B DPR Stage

B Completed

B Ongoing
Tendered

B DPR Stage

11



The Projects of TSCL have covered all the sectors and the sector wise breakup as on
31.03.2021 is furnished here under:

Sl No. Particulars Cost (Rs. In Crs) | Percentage of total
01. Road Infrastructure 367.70 39.67
02. Urban Mobility 89.87 9.69
03. ICT 88.56 9.55
04. Water Supply 81.56 8.80
05. Health 46.00 4.96
06. Education 56.45 6.09
07. Sports 59.75 6.44
08. Lake Bank Development (Amanikere) 39.89 4.30
09. Park Development 20.78 2.24
10. Energy Efficient Lighting -LED 17.26 1.86
11. Affordable Housing 14.01 1.51
12. Place Making 5.08 0.55
13. Solar Energy 3.90 0.42

Solid Waste Management
14. Other Infrastructure 36.38 3.92
Total 927.19 100.00

B Road Infrastructure

Sector Wise Breakup

B Urban Mobility

mICT

B Water Supply

H Health

® Education

B Sports

M Lake Bank Development
(Amanikere)
Park Development

B Energy Efficient Lighting -LED

m Affordable Housing

Place Making
Solar Energy

Solid Waste Management &
Other Infrastructure
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The brief details of the projects under these sectors is furnished hereunder:

A. ROAD INFRASTRUCTURE - (Rs.367.70 Crs):

a) REDEVELOPMENT AND REJUVINATION OF RING ROAD (Cost - Phase I Rs.58.96 Cr &
Phase Il Rs.38.47 Cr):

The redevelopment and rejuvenation of Ring Road, which was built in 1999-2000, was
necessitated due to continuous usage without proper maintenance. The project was taken up at
the instance of Tumkur Urban Development Authority in two phases with following interventions.

» Upgradation and Resurfacing of 4 lane carriageway for 10.50 kms between National
Highway and Gubbi Gate

» Provision of service road on both the sides

» Cross drainage with 15 culverts to avoid stagnation of water

» Provision of storm water drain

Thus, one of the prestigious and impactful projects of Redevelopment Road with 4 lanes

service road on both sides, storm water drain along the road and 15 culverts to avoid stagnation
of water. This has helped in diverting the traffic destined towards NH 206 and Extensions
adjacent to Ring Road from BH Road to Ring Road, thereby reducing traffic, accidents in the core
City as also pollution. Thus the quality of life of people has improved. The median plantation and
the street lighting on both sides has been done through other lighting projects taken up by TSCL
has improved the beauty and vision of the road.

b) INTEGRATED MOBILITY PLAN:
The Integrated Mobility plan prepared for the ABD area aims at developing roads as under:

i.  Smart Road-Roads with ROW above 12 mtrs
ii.  Road Shoulder Development-Roads with ROW-8-12mtrs
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i)

SMART ROADS - (Rs. 170.36 Crs):

The major components included in the Smart Road are:

» Utility corridor with provision for underground ducting to locate HT/LT lines of
BESCOM, 24x7 water line with house connection, Piped Natural Gas supply with

house connection and telecom lines (BSNL, other Private telecom
inspection chambers at every 50 meters

Storm water drain

Provision of pedestrian Footpath, LED lights

Provision of parking zones, multi utility zones

Beautification with bollards and landscaping,

Road Signs, Safety barriers, road marking

Street furniture etc.

YV VYV VY
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Totally 18 Roads have been taken up covering a length of 14.53 kms. The package
wise details and progress of work in percentage as on 31.08.2021 is furnished below:

Patl:\ll(:ge Roads Name (irl;i:g::r) Aw;};ﬂ%‘:‘f ost Physical Progress Status
Pfélj(;tct FMC Cariappa Road 530 3.63 100% Completed
JC Road 691 75% Ongoing
1 MG Road 787 20.27 95% Ongoing
Vivekananda Road 623 70% Ongoing
Horpet Road 754 95% Ongoing
Mandipet Road 857 95% Ongoing
Mandipet 1st Main 365 98% Ongoing
Mandipet 2nd Main 399 98% Ongoing
2 Pvt Bus Stand North Road 303 26.37 100% Completed
Pvt Bus Stand South Road 334 100% Completed
IB{Ezgawan Mahaveer Jain 1130 100% Completed
FMG Cariappa Road-Phase?2 250 100% Completed
3A Ashoka Road 1046 16.08 99% Ongoing
DC Office Road 439 99% Ongoing
Chamundeshwari Road 678 - Ongoing
3B Dr. Radhakrishna Road 630 39.69 100% Completed
Belagumba Road 1600 65% Ongoing
3C [BHRoad 3115 37.06 90% Ongoing
Total (18 Roads) - 14.53 Kms 143.10

As could be seen from the above, work in respect of 06 roads has been completed and the
work in respect of other roads has been 75 to 80%, which are expected to be completed by
31.12.2021. The Chamundeshwari Road has been taken up in August 2021 and expected to be
completed by March 2022.

14



ii) ROAD SHOULDER DEVELOPMENT - (Rs.85.94 Crs):

The project envisages development of 83 roads with ROW of 8-12 meters with
following components.

» Utility corridor with provision of ducting wherever feasible
» Storm water drains-New or redevelopment

» Shoulder Improvement

» Road improvement

The work has been taken up in 08 Extensions and Work is in Progress. The expected
date of completion of the project is 31.03.2022.

~\Iﬁ,;
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B. DRINKING WATER SUPPLY-(Rs. 81.56 Crs):

In terms of Mission Guidelines, provision of assured drinking water to the citizens is one of
the thrust areas. In tune with this policy, the following projects have been taken up to provide
necessary interventions and additional improvements for 24x7 water supply. These efforts will
supplement the efforts of Karnataka Urban Water Supply and Drainage Board as also Tumakuru
City Corporation to provide assured drinking water supply to the citizens.

» Contribution of Rs. 14.00 Crores as ULD Share towards improvements to water supply
scheme under AMRUT

» Filling up of Hemavathi water at Bugudanahalli to Amanikere-Project is completed.
> Pumping of Impounded water at Amanikere to water treatment plant and Putta

Narasaiahna Palya(PNPalya) for treatment and distribution-Project is completed

> Filling up of Hemavathi water from Gangasandra Tank to Maralur Tank-Work is in

progress.

The above projects besides supplementing the drinking water needs of the City will also
recharge the borewells by improving the water table.

C. EDUCATION-(Rs. 56.45 Crs):

Out of the available project funds of Rs. 930 Crores, Rs. 56.45 Crores forming 6.09% of the
total allocation has been earmarked for education. The projects taken up are:

a) MULTI FUNCTIONAL AUDITORIUM, LABORATORY AND LIBRARY COMPLEX AT
EMPRESS KARNATAKA PUBLIC SCHOOL:

During 1887, a primary school for girls was established by his Highness Nalwadi
Krishnaraja Wodeyar, which was upgraded to High School in 1913. In the same year, the Princess
of Victoria visited Tumakuru and inaugurated a building for the high school. In Honour of the visit,
the School was called “Empress School”. Now it is called “Empress Karnataka Public School”. As
at 2020-21, the strength of the institution is over 2000 girl students pursuing education upto Pre-
University.
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In order to supplement the present infrastructure, a multi facility center has been

constructed, at a cost of Rs. 13.54 crores, with the following facilities:

>

YV V VY

>
>
>

Ground Floor: Multifunctional Auditorium which can be used as an Assembly Hall and an
indoor stadium for sports like Tennis, Badminton, Chess and Carom;

First Floor: Laboratories for physics, Chemistry and Biology besides computer lab.
Second Floor: Library with provision for study by 300 students

Total built up area: 38,793.13 sq.ft

Provision has also been made for providing required furniture to the above.

Besides, under ICT initiatives, the following components have also been established:

Smart Class Rooms -12
ICT Labs -05
English Language Lab - 02

Thus, the above initiative has ensured that a Government Institution will have facilities

more than a private institution, where more than 2000 girl students from under privileged section
of the society are studying.

777 r}‘,:’é'/ﬁpa\\ =\ y

b) REVITALISATION OF GOVERNMENT PRE-UNIVERSITY COLLEGE:

The institution was established in 1890 as a high school and in 1973, the pre-university

section was introduced. The main building of the institution is a historical epitome, with colonial
architecture of 19t century. To provide adequate educational infrastructure the following
projects are taken up.

(Amount in Cr. Rs)

Sl Name of the Project Work Order Cost Present statu_s of

No. Implementations

01. | Pedestrian Environment Improvement 0.41 Completed
Construction of Additional Class room 0.86

02. Completed
block

03. | Construction of Additional Class room 0.77 Completed
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on new building
04 Construction of Additional Class room 2.40 Ongoing
" | on old building
05. | Sports Facility Centre 0.41 Completed
06. Gym Equipment to Sports Facility 0.38 Completed
Centre
07. | 50kw Grid Solar Power System 0.73 Completed
08. | Construction of Toilet Block 0.14 Completed
09. | Construction of Toilet Block 0.51 Ongoing
10. | Construction of Compound Wall 1.34 Ongoing
11. | CC Road and Entrance Gate 1.01 Ongoing
12. | Development of Sports Arena 1.83 Ongoing
13. | Furniture for Additional Class room 0.05 Completed
Procurement and Installation of 0.79 .
14. . Ongoing
Furniture
Total 14.63

Besides, under ICT initiatives, the following components have been commissioned:

» Smartclassroom  -14
» ICT Lab - 04
» English language lab - 02

Thus, by providing the necessary infrastructure to the Government Pre-University College,
TSCL has facilitated quality education to more than 2500 students, from poor families with proper
infrastructure.

c) DEVELOPMENT OF ANGANWADI CENTRES AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS AT TUMAKURU:

Anganwadi Centres will provide proper atmosphere for growth of a child. These centers
provide non-formal pre-school education, supplementary nutrition, health education,
immunization, health check-up and referral services of which the last three are provided in
convergence with public health systems. Also typical Anganwadi Center provides basic health care
to the growing child. The Integrated Child Development Services (ICDS) Scheme launched in 1975
has following objectives:

1. Toimprove the nutritional and health status of children in the age-group 0-6 years;

2. To lay the foundation for proper psychological, physical and social development of the
child;

3. To reduce the incidence of mortality, morbidity, malnutrition and school dropout;

4. To achieve effective co-ordination of policy and implementation amongst the various
departments to promote child development; and

5. To enhance the capability of the mother to look after the normal health and nutritional
needs of the child through proper nutrition and health education.

Realizing its importance Redevelopment/Construction Anganwadi Centre, measure for the
wellbeing of the families in Tumkur, project aimed at development of Anganawadi Centres at
various centers has been included as one of the projects funded by SCM. Besides, redevelopment
of the existing buildings at 24 centres, new construction for 12 Anganwadi Centres have been
proposed in 8 locations under Phase-1 and 4 locations under Phase 2 with the following
provisions:
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Teaching Hall of capacity 20 to 25 students.

Kitchen

Store room

Toilet

Wash Room

UG Sump-10,000 ltrs

RO Purifier

Racks

Verified Tile Flooring, Wall Cladding wherever necessary also including Light fixtures.

O XN E WD

Out of these, the work in respect of redevelopment of 24 centers, new eight Anganwadi
Centres have been completed and the other centers in Phase Il is in progress.

d) DEVELOPMENT OF COMPLEX FOR CITY LIBRARY WITH BUSINESS INCUBATION CENTRE:

The City Central Library of Tumakuru is located in a heritage building along with annex at
the centre of the city. Based on the request of citizens, who visit the library regularly including
students, youngsters taking up competitive exams etc, one more building is being constructed
with provision for a business incubation centre. The building has five floors with a total area of
7323 sq. mtrs consisting of the following:

Floor Utility
Basement Parking
Ground Floor | Seminar Hall with capacity of 500 persons and
Administration

First Floor Library with 250 capacity
Second floor | Digital Library
Third Floor Business Incubation Centre

The civil component work at a cost of Rs. 22.87 crores is in progress and expected to be
completed by Dec 2021. Furniture component will be taken up later. Proposal for locating the
MSME Centre of the Government of India to train the youth, in one/two floors is also under
consideration of the Government.
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e) DIGITAL LIBRARY - (Rs. 1.71 Crs):

The Digital Library Solution for Tumakuru Central Library is an efficient Library

Management System along with DRM enabled content rendering system, making information
highly secure, scalable, reliable and accessible on any electronic device to its members. The Digital
Library is accessible anywhere having its physical center at Tumkur City Library with the 20
Desktop systems infrastructure facility. The Solution consists of the following components:

4+ Open Access Library Management System.

+ Remote Access for e-Content/Virtual Library (www.tumakurudigitallibrary.in).

+ Mobile App Reader - Digital Rights Management for authorized members
(E-Bhandara: Google Play Store).

+ E-Books/e-Magazines/Journals - both open access & proprietary content.

+ Central Web-Portal for the Tumakuru Central Library.

The E-Content consisted of the following:

(1) More than 5,00,000 Journals across the different domains of interest.

(2) More than 50,000 E-Books across the different subjects of interest.

(3) E-Magazines: District, State, National level.

(4) E-Newspapers: District, State, National level.

(5) Provision has been made for addition of e-content in the subsequent years which will
be procured based on the requirement survey conducted using various channels
through the Digital Library Website and Application.

f) SKILL DEVELOPMENT CENTRE FOR NCC CADETS (Cost Rs. 0.42 Crore):

Smart Jawaans, the proposed infrastructure for setting up the firing simulator has been

built at existing NCC Training Grounds. The project includes the construction of the building for
housing the Firing Simulator and the commissioning of the Firing Simulator. It will meet the
requirement of NCC 4 Kar. Battalion, Tumakuru.

A Simplified training with true virtual shooting range.

Introduce weapons to a cadet without the anxiety of shooting an actual weapon for the first
time.

Training shall be conducted in a short span of time-frame for the cadets.

Large numbers of Cadets are trained in a short span of time despite the limitation of
ammunition and weapons.

Annually around 18,000 cadets to be trained in around 30 capsules each of 30 days
duration.

Employability of every NCC Cadet shall be increased by promoting the Self-employability
and Entrepreneurship.

Cadets can also be employed in a profession namely Armed Forces, Security Services and
Private Security Services etc.

20



Tumakuru, KA, India

i Stadium Road, New KEB Colony,
Tumakuru, 572103, KA, India

8 Lat 13°20'20"N, Long 77°7'3'E
B 01/12/2021 05:15 PM

g) DIGITAL CLASSROOM (Cost Rs. 2.95 Crs):

The project envisages improvement in the quality of education as part of the Digital India
Initiative. Digital Class aims to bring technology into the classroom and an exhaustive repository
of digital modules or lessons, based on state syllabus (consisting of 2D and 3D animations,
graphics, audio and video) on every subject as per the syllabus, which the teacher could easily
access. The project in the classroom gets illuminated and explained in abstract and difficult
concepts with liquid clarity. It has become more relevant in the present context of online classes
due to COVID. The following components are implemented at the identified locations:

4+ Smart Classroom
4+ ICT Labs
+ English Language Lab

Objectives:

» To enhance the quality of education and its content.

» To bring interactivity and innovativeness in the method of teaching.

» To uphold the digital literacy among the students and teachers.

» To make the students comfortable with English Language to face future with confidence.

Phases implemented:

1. Phase-I: 26 Digital Classrooms, 09 ICT Labs and 04 English Language Labs across
Government High School/Government PU College, Empress Karnataka Public School.

2. Phase-2: 30 Digital Classrooms across 15 Government Schools (Pan City).
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D. DEVELOPMENT OF SPORTS STADIUM - (Rs. 59.75 Crs):

DEVELOPMENT OF MAHATMA GANDHI STADIUM (Rs.54.64 Crs):

Tumakuru is one of the cities contributing to the sports fraternity of the state. A sports
stadium was existing in the city devoid of proper facility to the sports persons, VVIP/VIP galleries,
dormitories etc. Therefore, a need was felt to develop a sports stadium of international level with
all required facilities by demolishing the existing stadium.

Accordingly, a 4028 sq. mt stadium in Ground +3 Floors has been taken up with following
facilities, after demolishing the old stadium:

» 8lane synthetic athletic track

Hockey/Football court

Wrestling Block

VIP/VVIP Gallery

Dormitories for the sports person

Parking facility for 2 and 4 wheeler

Commercial space for ensuring continues flow of income to ensure sustainability

YVVYVVYVYVY

The Work is in Progress and expected to be completed by March 2022.

E. IMPROVEMENT OF HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE - (Rs. 46.00 Crs):

Improvement of health of the citizens is one the objectives of the Smart City Mission.
Considering the same, the following initiatives have been taken up as part of improvement of
Health Infrastructure in the City.

a) TRAUMA CARE CENTRE AT DISTRICT OFFICE PREMISES - (Rs. 41.43 Crs):

The objective of the project is to provide immediate medical facilities to the accident victims
in the ‘golden hour’ who are now moving to Bengaluru for the purpose. The project is being
implemented through the Health and Family Welfare Department of Government of Karnataka.

The facilities available in the Trauma Centre are:
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1. Basement Floor- Area (2310.00 Sq. m)
e Parking

2. Ground Floor - (Area 2058.00 Sq. m)
e X-ray Section
e Operation Theater
e Ultrasound Room
e Laboratory
e Emergency Ward
e Department of Radiology
e Registration of Out Patient
e Medical

3. First Floor-(Area 2103 Sq. m)
e Ward Section - 67 Beds
e Special Wards-07 Beds
e (C.S.S.D Section

4. Second Floor - (Area 2103.00 Sq. m)
e 2-Operation Theater
e Minor Operation Theater - 2 no.
e [CU Ward - 25 Beds
e Pre-Operative & Post-Operative Wards
e Waiting Room

5. Third Floor - (Area 367.75 Sq. m)
e Breakfast room and Draining Hall
e AH.U Section
e Store Section

The civil construction work is expected to be completed by December 2021. Meanwhile, the
process for procurement of required furniture and medical equipment has also been initiated by
formation of a Committee under the Chairmanship of District Health Officer and tender has been
invited.
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b) DIGITAL NERVE CENTRE - (Rs. 4.27 Crs):

In one of the initiatives in line with the Kolar Model, TSCL has implemented the DiNC
project for Tumakuru City using the Kolar Data Centre. The DiNC is a combination of people,
Technology and processes which synchronizes with each other to deliver.

- Quick and Assure access to doctors/ Health Services

- Provide virtual Consultation and bridge the Health care resource gap.
- Expands the reach by health care services.

- Early post consultation care with minimal travel and cost burden.

The ASHA workers and PCC have been deputed to conduct a survey to collect the basic
health information of the city which was fed to DiNC for monitoring. Thus, more than 3.57
Lakhs citizens’ database has been created in the application. The DiNC project is running
across 7 PHC’s and District Hospital since Apr-2019 and an average of 800 calls are received
every month. During the Covid-19 period the facility was extensively used. The interventions
in the project are:

SL Amount of
No. Component Expenditure
(Rs. in Lakhs)
1 | Revamping PHC infrastructure/Civil 85.00
Work
2 | Arena Structure/Furniture infrastructure 13.73
3 | Implementation - IT Part / HR 153.94
Total 352.67

The Implementation cost includes expenses of human resource like doctors, Nurses,
Patients, Care Co-ordination etc. The support for the Human Resources cost has been
extended up to 31.03.2022 with an estimated cost of Rs. 1.30 Crs.

c) ALS AMBULANCE - (Rs. 0.54 Crs):

To shift the critically ill patients to the Hospital by providing the required medical
attention during the transit from accident site to the Trauma Centre/hospital, procurement of ALS
Ambulance was thought of and has now been operationalized. As the name itself indicates, the
ALS (Advanced Life Support) ambulance carries the necessary equipment’s required to stabilize,
treat and transport the patients to a hospital and hence, will be provided with trained medical

staff. The Ambulance has been provided with life-saving equipment’s like:

e Advanced Biphasic defabricator with built in multipara monitor
e Portable ventilator

e Syringe infusion pump

e Emergency kit

e Ambu Bag

o  Wheel chair and evacuation chair

e Intubation kit

e Advance portable suction unit
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Provision of ALS Ambulance to the District Hospital has facilitated providing much needed
medical attention during the transit from accident site to hospital, thereby saving the precious life
by treatment in Golden Hour.

d) RT-PCR LAB AT DISTRICT HOSPITAL PREMISES- (Rs. 0.86 Crs):

The Company has funded establishment of RT-PCR lab at District Hospital Premises at
Tumakuru. This has facilitated faster results within 2 days besides more coverage at Tumakuru.
Earlier, the samples were sent to Bangalore, and the results were available only after 5-6 days, by
that time the infected persons would have spread the COVID. Thus, faster investigation and more
coverage has helped the district admin in reducing the spread.

F. AFFORDABLE HOUSING - (Rs. 14.01 Crs):

AFFORDABLE HOUSING AT MARIYAMMANAGAR SLUM LOCATED IN ABD AREA:

Mariyammanagar Slum is located in ward no. 14 in the heart of Tumakuru, surrounded by
the commercial establishments. The Area of the Slum is 28.08 guntas and 87 families are residing
in this slum under un-hygienic conditions. The shelter to these families is only a temporary shed
for the past 25 years and the slum is devoid of basic infrastructure.

The implementation of the Govt. of India avowed Smart City Mission Project in Tumakuru
has become a boon to these identified 87 families.

Facilities Available:

» The project has come up in three blocks - A, B, C with 88 units/ houses.

» The built-up area of each unit/house is 33.33 sq. meters and is having a living room, single
bedroom, kitchen with granite cooking platform and the toilet. The houses are provided
with vitrified flooring and the common spaces with granite flooring makes the houses
luxurious and comfortable.

» Each floor has been provided with separate water tank and each unit is having a separate
electric connection.

» Each block is provided with lift facility.
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» To make the families residing in the housing complex comfortable and self-sufficient, the
following community assets have also been provided:

e Community Center: To conduct social functions.

e Livelihood Center: To promote a much-needed job training and livelihood
development for taking up income generating activities to supplement the family
income.

e Anganawadi Center: To look after the children of these families to ensure they are
brought up in proper atmosphere.

e Ample parking space is provided on the ground floor & also reserved green space.

» The new housing complex has been constructed in the corporation land located next to the
slum.

» Tumakuru Smart City Limited is also developing a vending zone next to the housing
complex to provide marketing facilities to some of the artisans in the slum.

The projected impact of the project is one of the Slums in the ABD Area will be eliminated
by providing decent hygienic living conditions to the inhabitants. Basic problems of the Slum viz.
Sanitation issue, Safe drinking water, Health etc. are addressed. The identified 87 families will
now live in decent house under hygienic condition and are now protected from multitude of
diseases.

THIS IS A PERFECT DEMONSTRATION OF “REDEVELOPMENT MODEL” AS PER THE
SCM GUIDELINES.

G. AMANIKERE LAKE REVITALISATION - (Rs. 44.75 Crs):

Amanikere is the largest lake in the city with an area of 506 acres. The objective of the
project is to restore Amanikere to its natural glory to help in alleviating socio-economic activities,
value system through afforestation, strengthen the bund and ensure smart and sustainable water
management since the lake has been recognized as a public’s space - a place for recreation to the
citizens. Some of the sub-projects like jogging track, tunnel walking, yoga retreat, urban haat, etc.
are citizen centric.
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The following are the sub-projects:

Sl Awarded
) Sub Project Cost/Estimated Status
No
Cost
1 Desilting restoration and reclamation of upstream feeder 0.39 Completed
channel
2 | Clearance of 05 nalas 0.18 Completed
i) Development of Nursery for Afforestation and Green
3 | Buffer Zone at Amanikere 1.13 Completed
ii)Plantation around Amanikere
4 | Solar paneling of glass house 2.93 Completed
5 | Lake bank conservation and erosion protection 25.37 Ongoing
6 Construction f’f Boundary wall and chain link fencing with 3.47 Ongoing
cameras and lights
- Construction and development of tunnel walking yoga 167 Completed
retreat
8 | Urban Hath 1.57 Ongoing
9 | Installation and erection of 65mts Flag pole 1.02 Completed
10 | Lake amenities with alliances 0.86 Ongoing
11 | Installation and commission of garden lights 1.93 Completed
Construction of Diversion drain for sewage/sullage water .
12 entering the Amanikere lake at Northern side 4.23 Ongoing
Total 44.75

Besides, the project of filling of Hemavathi water to Amanikere (already explained) will
also ensure storage of water in the entire year, thereby enhancing the beauty of the lake.

Thus, through various interventions the lake is being developed as an eco-tourism spot.
The solar paneling of Glass house will generate power which will not only ensure meeting the
power needs of the Glass house, the parks around the lake, but will also ensure significant income
to TUDA by supply of excess power to the grid.

SH 33, TUDA Layout, Tumakuru, Kamataka
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H. GREEN SPACE-DEVELOPMENT OF PARKS (Rs. 20.78 Crs):

The Smart City Mission guidelines lays emphasis on Green space Development. In
consonance with this initiative, the Revised Smart City Proposal has taken up Development of
Park as a PAN City project.

Tumakuru has the largest spread of parks in 35 wards with 520 parks in the city and only
few are developed. The project envisages development of the selected parks across pan city by
providing Fencing, Pathway development and other required infrastructure on case to case basis.
53 parks have so far been developed under Smart City Mission in the city. Out of 53 parks, 37
parks are developed with provision of Civil Infrastructure like Walking path, Benches, Fencing,
Plantation, Dustbins, Gym & kids Equipment’s, Garden Lights etc. and 16 parks have been
developed with IT Infrastructure viz. Smart Benches, lighting, Smart Composting, BMS etc..

The development of these parks has ensured Promoting Community Wellness, Providing
Connection Space, Creating Safe Gathering Places including Everyone in Play, Giving Families Free
Activity, Encouraging Social Skills in Kids & Enhancing Kids’ Multisensory Experiences etc.
thereby creating Social Equality and Improvements in Environment.

The Science Theme Park is one of the parks developed on innovative concept of educating
the children with experiments on the field and based on “PLAY & LEARN”. It is located at the
premises of the park attached to Amanikere and has been developed with the following salient
features:

K/
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It is spread over an area of 1500 mtrs

Initially 26 experiments and working models are placed to help the students of Primary
and Secondary education levels with clarity on working structure and principles.

» Some of the virtual experiments / sites are installed to educate about Science / Physics.
Important models are Periodic Table, Cynognathus (Dog Jaw), Auto mobile, Vortex, Echo
Tube, Glyptodont, Archimedes, Newton'’s colour Disk, DNA model etc.
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Regular activities are conducted in the park to create interest in students and bring back
concept of innovation at the young age which will benefit the students of all schools.
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I. URBAN MOBILITY - (Rs. 89.87 Crs):

a) INTEGRATED BUS TERMINAL - (Rs. 86.56 Crs):

The project has two components:

1) Development of Integrated Bus Terminal (IBT) by demolishing the existing Terminal
2) Development of Bus Depot.

The development of IBT is taken up out of Smart City Mission funds with an awarded cost of
Rs. 82.00 crores. The existing Bus Terminal was relocated to Bus depot. The work of
Construction of New Bus Terminal with following zoning of facilities is under progress:

- Basement 1&2 - Parking

- Ground floor - Mofussil buses

- Upper Ground floor - City Buses

- I &IIFloor - Commercial retail space

The revenue generated in commercial/ retail spaces will be shared between TSCL and
KSRTC on 50:50 basis. The Bus depot will be later developed by KSRTC as a Convergence Project.

b) SMART PARKING- (Rs. 2.17 Crs):

The conservancies in FMC Road (3 conservancies) and SS Puram (7 Conservancies) have
been developed as Smart Parking spaces for two wheelers with facility of display of available
spaces, boon barrier to arrest unauthorized entries, CCTV camera, handheld machine for fee
collection, web applications. This would facilitate arresting the traffic congestion at busy MG
Road. FMC road and SS Puram main roads by diverting the two-wheeler parking to these
conservancies.

J. ENERGY EFFICIENT LIGHTING-(Rs. 17.26 Crs):

The conversion of existing conventional lights to LED lights is one of the PPP projects in
the Revised SCP. As part of this project, a baseline survey was conducted to assess the existing
infrastructure and presumptive load. The survey revealed dark spots especially in the periphery
of the city and the entire ring road was provided with the lights on both the sides of carriage way.
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Besides, infrastructure correction needed in the existing lighting system was also addressed. The
following important projects aimed at creating lighting infrastructure and Infrastructure

Correction are identified and status are as under:

SL Name of the Work order Scope of Work Project
No. project Cost (Rs. In Crs) P Status
Creating lighting slgzmg 8 meter octagonal pole -
01 | infrastructure - 7.95 Fixing 9 meter octagonal pole- Completed
Phase |
780
Fixing 7 meter octagonal pole -
Creating lighting 1.0(.)0
. Fixing 8 meter octagonal pole-
02 | infrastructure -
Phase Il 4.66 360
Fixing 9 meter octagonal pole- Completed
120
Infrastructure Fixing 8 meter PSCC Poles -1205 Work
03 Correction to the LT UG Cable 14.70 Kms under
existing lighting 2.58 2 Aluminium Conductor Control Progress
system Wire 284 Kms &

Besides, a PPP Project for replacement of 39,915 conventional lights with energy efficient
LED lights with CCMS facility is under progress and expected to be completed by end of Oct 2021.

K. PLACE MAKING PROJECTS-(Rs. 5.08 Crs):

a) VENDING ZONES-(Rs. 5.08 Crs):

Vending zone means an area or a place or a location designated as such by the local
authorities, for the specific use by street vendors for street vending. Accordingly, in consultation
with the Tumkur City Corporation, establishment of Vending Zones have been taken up as part of
the Smart City funded projects. The details are as under:
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Location NO'.Of Trade Work Order Present Status
Units Cost
Upparahally Flyover Completed &
10 Multiple 0.38 Handed over to
TCC
Kothithopu Road near
SS Circle- Phase | 14 Food Court 0.33 Completed
Kothithopu Road near .
SS Circle —Phase II 24 Food Court 0.64 Work in Progress
Jayanagar Bus Stop 30 Vegetables, fruits 0.81 Work in Progress
Mariammanagar 110 Vegetables, fruits 205 Work in Progress
& Flower
Dhobi Ghat 37 Vegetables, fruits 0.87 Work in Progress
TOTAL 225 5.08

b) BANYAN TREE BOULEVARD - AN INNOVATIVE PROJECT:

The Banyan Tree Avenue is the 170 meters long stretch starting from BH Road to PU
College entrance gate. The ROW of the avenue is 15-21 meters and carriageway is of 7 meters
width uniformly. On both sides of the carriageway there are 20 Banyan Trees on both sides and

many other small trees.

The interventions in the Banyan Tree Avenue is furnished below:

Access: Existing access has been retained from the both sides i.e. from the main road &
proposed convention building. Gate has been provided on both sides, to control access, &
it can be used for emergency vehicular access. Another pedestrian access is provided
through PU College ground, which opens up to central part of the avenue.

Flooring Pattern: The design of paving pattern on pedestrian way reflects the flow of
movement on the site with strong geometrical arrangement of seating wall and seating
steps. Combination of granite cobblestone, red ruby granite and red sand stone are used to
give a unique character to this pathway.

Central Plaza: It creates the focal point of the site, which is also connected through a
pedestrian access through PU College ground. Plaza designed by the mentioned flooring
material, which breaks the monotony of the avenue as well as guiding the flow of
pedestrian movement.

Seating Area: Seating area is given in three forms i.e. seating wall, seating cubes & seating
steps. These seating arrangement are designed in such a way that existing trees become
the vital part of the design. Tree location, its girth and spread are also kept in mind while
designing these spaces.

Lighting: Since there was no lighting, unsolicited activities used to take place in the night.
By providing adequate lighting this avenue could be used for various other socio cultural
and educational activities by the citizens and students.

The development of Banyan Tree Avenue has the following impacts:

Enhanced linkages to cultural and natural resources within the site universally accessed
by all cross section of the society;

Enhanced imageability and perception of a city level public place thus rejuvenating
precinct with raised levels of pride and ownership;
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3. Strengthened capacity of concerned sector agencies and local communities for planning,
development, management and marketing of city level institutional destinations and
attractions;

4. Provide a conductive environment for children to exhibit their talents;

5. Increased productivity of the children by developing interactive spaces inside the school
campus. The main design goal is to develop the site as a pedestrian friendly zone by
providing seating areas and basic public amenities.

L. ICT INITIATIVES -(Rs. 88.56 Crs):

a) INTEGRATED CITY MANAGEMENT CONTROL CENTRE (ICMCC)-(Rs. 66.53 Crs):

The ICMCC will provide a comprehensive system for planning, optimizing resources and
response pertaining to the standard functions of the concerned authorities. It will ensure e-
governance. Hence, establishment of Integrated City Management Command and Control Centre is
one of the prestigious projects of Smart City Mission. The Command Centre will cater to the city
operation, city surveillance, Emergency response system, intelligent signaling, variable messaging
system, Environmental monitoring system along with a Tumakuru One application. It acts as a
support mechanism to the city administration /authorities in their routine activities as well as
during exigency situation. This dynamic response to situation both pre-active and reactive will
truly make the city operations “Smart”.

The project is implemented and completed in two phases. Component -wise details are as
under

Command and Control Centre: TSCL had established ICMCC where multiple applications
like Signaling, CCTV surveillance, Network monitoring, Security services, Emergency Response are
operated. Presently, it is housed in the Town Hall building at the Tumkur City Corporation
premises. A three floored building at Superintendent of Police office premises is under
construction, wherein the structure work is completed and the finishing work is in progress. The
full-fledged command centre will become operational before 31.3.22.

Intelligent Signalling: 13 Signal junctions with ATCS (Adaptive Traffic Controllers) are
installed. As part of intelligent signalling three types of cameras are installed at the above
junctions viz; PTZ, RLVD (Red Light Violation Recognition) and ANPR (Automatic Number plate
Recognition).

Intelligent Signalling Cameras will be used for e-challaning for the traffic violators. Traffic
Violations like Triple Riding, No Helmet, Wrong way driving etc. will be automatically challaned
by the system. The application is integrated with “SARATHI” of NIC.

CCTV Surveillance: 298 cameras are installed for surveillance purpose. These cameras
are fixed box cameras and PTZ Cameras. Facial Recognition feature is also available which is
integrated with the NCRB database of criminals.

CCTV Surveillance and facial recognition are used by Police department to track the
crimes, theft cases, challaning and other police cases.

PA system and Emergency Call Box (ECB): Public announcement system and
Emergency Call Boxes are installed at 41 locations across the city.
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PA system is used by police department to broadcast announcements of public interest,
while Citizens can use the service of ECB in case of emergency by pressing the red button and can
speak to the operator at ICMCC.

Mobile Surveillance Vehicle: Three Mobile Surveillance vehicles are handed over to
Police Department which acts as mini command centre. PTZ Cameras mounted on mast which can
go up to 6 mtrs, PA system and computer to analyses the situation.

Environmental Monitoring: Five Environmental Sensors are installed at 5 locations
across the city with a display board and will capture and display Temperature, CO, SO2, NO2, PM
2.5, PM 10 and other pollutants.

Environment sensors will provide City Corporation and Pollution Control Board officials
to take the corrective actions when a pollutant crosses the threshold limit.

Variable Messaging System: 6 VMS boards are installed in all the entry points of the city.

Variable Messaging System is being used to display the messages regarding public safety
and other important messages of public interest from police department and City Corporation.

Smart Tumakuru Mobile Application: This application will be used by public for
municipal tax payment, Bus timings and ETA, SWM vehicle movement, Environment data, pay
challans and many other services.

Citizens now can pay tax through mobile application and get many information regarding
Tumakuru City in the Smart Tumakuru mobile application.

The Go Live process is completed after User Acceptance Test involving the Stake holders.
The e-challenging system for levying penalty for traffic violations by integrating with the Vaahan
Data Base has also been introduced and the Police have been provided with 40 handheld e-
challenging devices. The same has been integrated with payment gateway to enable online
payment and the amount will be credited to Khajaane 2 of the State Government. TSCL is the first
smart city in Karnataka to implement this initiative.

It is a pleasure to inform that Tumakuru is one of the cities identified by
Government of India to launch 50 ICMCC by the Hon’ble Prime Minister before 31-12-2019
which has been accomplished.




b) LOCKED HOUSE MONITORING SYSTEM-(Rs. 0.22 Cr):

Tumakuru Smart City Limited in association with Tumakuru Police has come up with an
innovative project called “Locked House Monitoring System”. The project is designed to provide
safety and security to the citizens of Tumakuru. The main aim of the project is to create a
relationship between police and the citizens for the better safety and security of the citizens. CCTV
cameras will be placed inside the house of the citizens who have requested for watching the house
when they are out of station and monitor the house from the control room.

Tumakuru Smart City Limited has provided 100 motion sensor cameras to the Tumakuru
Police and has developed a Mobile application for the citizens. Citizens have to register in the
mobile application from their house, can request the police for watch by giving the date and time
range for which police has to watch his house. Upon receipt of the Watch request police will place
the CCTV cameras and its accessories like charger, power bank, internet dongle. Upon installation
of the cameras the monitoring of the house starts at the control centre and the system is
configured in such a way that whenever there is any motion in front of the camera, the alarm will
start to sound with the video feed immediately sent to the control centre.

Police will verify, if there is any intruder in the house and immediately sends information
to the beat police and the nearby police station through the wireless facility already available with
police department, to abort the attempt for theft and also apprehend the culprits. Thus, through
this initiative, any theft/burglary can be avoided by using technology. Presently the system is
available only to the residential houses.

¢) SMART POLES-(Rs. 1.03 Crs):

The objective of the project is to install the lighting system with highly intelligent and
sophisticated lighting management system in the city/designated environment. In-turn to make
the environment safer, greener (mitigate energy loss), efficient (reduce OPEX costs) and the core
of this project is to have the Smart-poles without compromising on the aesthetic look of the
Environment.

The Smart Poles are commissioned across 06 identified feasible locations in Tumakuru
City as a Pan City ICT initiative.

The primary components in the Smart pole are LAN Switch, Streetlight, Surveillance
Camera, Public Wi Fi Access Point, Advertisement Display (Screen Size should be minimum 2’ X
3’), Air quality sensor, Electrical Vehicle Charging, Emergency Communication and Hybrid
Inverter. The introduction of Smart poles will ensure huge reduction of energy and maintenance
cost, increased public safety from improved lighting, Measurable environmental impact due to
reduced energy consumption, Environmental Monitoring (Pollution, Noise, weather etc.) Public
safety through High-definition Cameras and Video Displays to push relevant content and public
awareness messages — Monetize by playing public/private advertisements.

d) SMART LOUNGE-(Rs. 1.30 Crs):

TSCL has specially designed Smart Lounge Concept which is an independent module
based stand-alone structure. The Smart Lounge has components like Digital Reading Zone for
accessing internet and digital library, Digital Public Service Kiosk, Café with Pantry, Toilet.
Provision is also available for installing ATM and Health ATM. The revenue module structure
includes the user fee for e-learning, service charges from public service kiosk, rental charges from
cafeteria, ATM etc. One such unit has been established at Amanikere premises in Jan 2019, well
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received by the public, media and bagged award. During the covid period, since it cannot be
operated, the District Administration is using it as a Covid Monitoring Centre.

e) INTELLIGENT TRANSPORT SYSTEM (ITS)-(Rs. 4.69 Crs):

The improvement in the quality of intra-city public bus transport services being run by
KSRTC -“Sri Siddaganga Tumakuru City Transport” to enhance the public convenience is the
objective of the project. The project has covered 49 Sri Siddaganga Tumakuru City Transport
Buses, 142 Bus stops and 1 Bus terminal. Besides, the project is also monitoring the movement of
142 vehicles involved in solid waste management of the Tumkur City Corporation.

The ITS project which has gone live will cover Automatic Vehicle Locations Information
System (AVLIS), Passenger Information System (PIS) through LED Boards, LED display in buses,
bus- stops, bus terminals and control station. It is ensuring the movement of buses in right time by
displaying the timings in the bus stops. Besides, it is also generating MIS reports to facilitate
KSRTC to fine tune the local transport. For passenger safety, all the buses are provided with CCTV
camera and Panic buttons.

Installation of GPS devices for 142 vehicles involved in solid waste management of TCC has
been completed and MIS reports are generated. The project is helping the City Corporation in
ascertaining the movement of vehicles in the designated routes and ensuring proper collection of
garbage.

The ITS will be integrated to ICMCC shortly.
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f) OTHER ICT PROJECTS-(Rs. 36.38 Crs):

Besides, other innovative impactful ICT projects like procurement of Drone Cameras to
Police (4) and Tumakuru City Corporation (01) and Drone Survey for mapping of utilities,
property tax management is also under implementation.

11. PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP PROJECTS-(Rs. 356.65 Crs):

The list of Projects taken up as PPP Projects along with their status as on 31.08.2021 is
furnished here under:

PPP Projects
SL. Name of the work Estimated Cost Status as on 31.08.2021
No. (Rs.In Cr.)
PPP project taken up by GAIL.
1 Piped Natural Gas Supply 100.00 The project completion date as
per Work Order is 15.01.2021
2 Street-lighting control system 74.75 Work is in Progress
3 Public Bicycle Sharing 2.58 Tender under finalization
4 Multi Utility Mall with Multi 60.00 LOA issued
level car parking
Roof top solar panels govt. .
5 buildings & Industries 16.32 Work is in Progress
Development of Smart Bus N
6 shelter (39 locations) 5.00 Tender under finalization
Implementation and
7 maintenance of floating solar 98.00 Tender under finalization
plant at Bugudanahally
Reservoir
Total 356.65

12. CONVERGENCE PROJECTS- (Rs. 980.52 Crs):

The Convergence projects also form a part of Smart City Proposal. Accordingly, 43 projects
with a cost of Rs. 980.52 crores form part of the Smart City Proposal of which 40 projects with a
cost of Rs. 933.61 crores has been completed.

13. FINANCIAL PROGRESS:

A comparative position of Financial Progress as on 31.03.2020 and 31.03.2021 along with
the latest position is furnished here under
(Amount in Crore Rupees)

Fund | 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2021 | 31.08.2021
a. Received from

Government of India 196.00 294.00 294.00
Government of Karnataka 111.00 297.00 297.00
Total 307.00 591.00 591.00
b. Utilization

Project Expenditure 175.11 371.66 463.66

A & OE 19.94 29.50 31.31
Total 195.05 401.16 494.97

c. % of utilization of funds 63.53 67.87 83.75
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14. RANKING OF CITY BY MINISTRY OF HOUSING AND URBAN AFFAIRS:

The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs have developed a portal to facilitate the Smart
Cities to furnish the data on the project details, DPR Status/amount, work order details,
milestones, its accomplishment, financial progress, project completion status and utilization
certificate submission details. MoHUA generates city Ranks every week. The position as on
31.03.2021 and 31.08.2021 is as under:

Particulars 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2021 | 31.08.2021
Ranking of the city at the
National Level 19 06 13
Ranking of the city at the State 2 01 01
Level

15. AWARDS:

The awards bestowed on the projects of TSCL by various agencies are furnished here

under:
131- Project Name Award Category Organizers Date of Event
o.
01. | Smart Lounge Academic Programme | 5th Smart Cities India 22nd to 24th of May
: § Category 2019 Expo 2019
02. | spv Most Popular SPV CEO Smart Cities Awards 25th September
Award 2019
DiNC-Digital Nerve | Best Smart Health iy 29th November
03. Centre Initiative Of The Year BW Smart Cities Award 2019
Best Digital City Smart City Empowering
04. | Smart Lounge Category Awards , MoHUA 28th Feb 2020
05. | Smart Classroom Best Smart Education | ET Government-Global 27th and 28th
Solution of the Year Smart Cities Forum 2020 | November 2020

Tumakuru Digital

Award of Excellence in

10th ELETS Knowledge

10 to 12th December

06. Library Ir}r}ovatlons in Smart Exchange Summit & 2020
Cities Awards
NCC Firing Award (?f Exgellence in | 10th ELETS Knoleedge 10 to 12th December
07. | .. Innovations in Smart Exchange Summit &
Simulator i 2020
Cities Awards
.| 10th ELETS Knowledge
08. | 1cMcc Award of Excellence in Exchange Summit & 10 to 12th December

Digital Governance

Awards

2020

09. | Digital Library

Best initiative in Social
Aspects

India Smart City Award
Contest 2020

Part of 6th
Anniversary of
Smart City Mission
on 25.06.2021
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16. MOU WITH CITY OF AALBORG (THE KINGDOM OF DENMARK]) AS A SISTER CITY:

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed on 28.11.2019 between Dr. Shalini
Rajneesh, I.AS., the then Chairperson of TSCL and His Excellency Freddy Svane, the Ambassador
of Denmark fostering sister city concept to enable sustained, long bi-lateral co-operation to
encourage knowledge transfer across government, business and academia. The areas of co-
operation identified are:

e Urban Planning & Development for a Sustainable Transaction
e Smart Education

e Digitization and Energy Efficiency Initiative

e Urban Water Management

e Transportation

e Low-Carbon/Zero Carbon/Green Construction and Building
e Social and Climate Resiliency

e Healthy and Liveable Cities

e Smart Manufacturing

e Health including digital solution

e E-Governance

During the year under review, much headway could not be achieved due to Covid-19
pandemic and the restrictions thereof. However, the following initiatives are being pursued:

e  Water Conservation - Lake Rejuvenation

e Health - Diabetes Management, Covid-19

e  Mobility - Pedestrian/ cycle friendly roads

e (itizen Centric Design - Redesigning the citizen centric centers

e  Education - The Smart Class Room project of TSCL can be taken forward through the LMS
to make it more student friendly.

e Reducing the Non- Revenue water component in the Drinking Water of Tumkur.
Discussion has been held between TSCL. KUWS&DB and TCC with Danish Government
Officials to identify the strategies to reduce the non-revenue water from the present 40%.

e Translation of 400 stories in English/Danish to Kannada to mark the occasion of 200t
year of Indo-Danish relationship.

17. HUMAN RESOURCES:

The Company has a dedicated human resources team drawn from the concerned department
also recruited on contract basis. The details of manpower as on 31.08.2021 besides the Managing
Director are as under:

Department/ Position N(.)' .Of Out_of which
Officials | Deputation | Contract

Technical
Chief Engineer &
General tl%/lanager - Tech 01 01 )
Superintendent Engineer (Ele) 01 - 01
Executive Engineer 02 01 01
Assistant Executive Engineer 04 02 02
Assistant Engineer 04 - 04
ICT Manager 02 - 02
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Junior Engineer ‘ 01 - 01
Administration
General Manager (Admin) 01 - 01
Company Secretary 01 - 01
Manager 01 - 01
Executive Assistant to MD & CEO 01 - 01
Executive Assistant to - FDAs 03 - 03
Accounts
Chief Finance Officer 01 01 -
Audit Officer 01 01 -
Account Superintendent 01 01 -
Executive Assistant - FDAs 02 01 01
Total 27 08 19

18. DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL APPOINTED, TRANSFERRED & RESIGNED
DURING THE YEAR:

The details of change in Managing Director is furnished in clause 7 (B) of the Director’s
Report under the head ‘Change in the Incumbency of Managing Director during 2020-21. There
was no change in Key Managerial Personnel during the year 2020-21.

19. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of sub-section (5) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Directors confirm that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of the affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
company for the year.

iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB- SECTION (12)
OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT:

No frauds were reported by Auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act 2013
during the financial year 2020-21.
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21. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the
company stating that the Independent Director has met the criteria laid down in Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act 2013.

22. COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

The appointment, tenure and remuneration of the Directors (functional directors
including MD & CEQO) are determined by the nominating agencies i.e. Govt. of India/ Govt. of
Karnataka.

Independent Directors are appointed by Govt. of Karnataka and they are entitled to sitting
fee for attending the Board/ Committee Meeting as approved by the Board.

23. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS:

The Auditor’s observations in their report are self-explanatory and the Board gives
following explanations for their remarks:

1. “The Company has Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rs. 37.47 lakh as at end of March 2021
despite the fact that in the absence of an independent revenue stream for the Company, there is
no possibility that sufficient taxable profit would be available to allow the benefit of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. This resulted in over valuation of the deferred tax asset.”

The Company has calculated the deferred tax for the financial year 2020-21 on the
basis of difference between the depreciation as per the Companies Act 2013 and the Income
Act 1961 without considering the current year loss. Further, the Company has identified
revenue stream lines from the ongoing/completed projects like smart roads with
underground corridor, commercial spaces in city library complex, IBT, MG Stadium, vending
zones, parking conservancies, Smart Bus Shelters and other fees from ICMCC Phase-I, Smart
Lounge, etc. The implementation of these projects is under progress and the revenue will
generate to the Company on the completion of the same which will result in profitability in
the future. Hence the deferred tax calculated and accounted in the financial statements for
the financial year 2020-21 are to be set off in future.

2. “The Company had accounted an amount of Rs. 78.49 lakh being forfeiture of EMD from
Contractors as other miscellaneous income during 2019-20 (Current year nil) and the Company
was advised by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India to revisit the treatment to ensure
uniform accounting treatment at par with other smart cities and in consultation with
Government. Pending clarification in this regard, this was to be treated as Liability. During the
Financial Year 2020-21, the company has not formulated the required accounting policy and
also not treated this as liability in the financial year 2020-21. Though the transaction relates to
2019-20, the following aspect needs to be considered. As assets created are transferred to
various agencies and are not retained as assets of the Company, any penalty recovered would
not form part of the income of the Company and will have to be reduced from either the CWIP or
the cost of asset if already transferred or depicted as liability. This resulted in understatement of
liability.”

The Company had accounted an amount of Rs. 78.49 lakhs as miscellaneous income in
the financial statements of the Company for the F.Y. 2019-20 which consists of the following:

a) Rs. 71.06 lakhs towards forfeiture of EMD amount on account of submission of fake
documents while participating in the tender. As the EMD amount was forfeited before the
execution of work i.e. in tender process, no project cost was incurred. Further as the cost

40



incurred up to implementation phase had to be met out of A&OE grant, the EMD forfeited
was treated as revenue (miscellaneous income) to the Company in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

b) Rs. 6.66 lakhs towards forfeiture of Security Deposit due to failure of contractor to execute
the work as per contract agreement. Since there was no project cost incurred, the security
deposit forfeited was treated as revenue.

¢) The balance amount of Rs. 0.77 lakh towards amount received on sale of tender
documents, recovery of salary of contract employees for non-intimation resignation, sale
of newspapers and periodicals and other miscellaneous receipts, which being revenue in
nature were treated as other miscellaneous income in the statement of profit and loss.

3. “We draw attention to Note no 1 (i) (‘c) of the financial statement which states that the
company is special purpose vehicle incorporated for implementation of the smart city projects
and company is receiving grants from Government of India as well as Government of Karnataka
for the first five years of implementation. Further as stated in the note, as per smart city
guidelines issued by Government of India, company can have its own independent revenue
stream line to continue its objects beyond 5t year. The financial year 2020-21 is the 4t year and
even though company has identified certain independent revenue streamline, implementation
along with local government bodies is in process and no independent revenue is generated as on
31 march 2021. Further, company did not receive any further communication from the
government for the support beyond 5t year.

The above events, conditions and other matters as set forth in note 1(i)(‘c) indicates that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.”

The Company has identified revenue stream lines for sustainability from the
ongoing/completed projects like vending zones, parking conservancies, commercial spaces in
IBT, MG Stadium, City Library, Smart Bus Shelters and other fees from ICMCC Phase-I, Smart
Lounge, etc. The implementation of these projects is under progress and the revenue will
generate to the Company on the completion of the projects which will support Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the
company.

24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

25. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188:

The Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with Related Parties
referred in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act 2013 during the Financial Year
2020-21 and hence Form No. AOC-2 is not enclosed to this report.
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26. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH
THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial year 2020-21 and the date of this report.

27. ANY COMMENTS OR REMARKS OF C&AG FROM THEIR SUPPLEMENTARY AUDIT FOR
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21:

The comments issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not carry any adverse remarks on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21.

28. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year. Since the
company is engaged in Public Administrative Services and not in manufacturing activity, the
particulars as required under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to the Company.

29. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 and hence such
accounts and records are not maintained.

30. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for
every individual working in Company through various interventions and practices. The Company
always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment. The company has complied with provisions relating to
the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The details of number of cases filed

and disposed as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the Year 2020-21 are as under:

S No. No. of case filed under the Act No. of cases disposed under the Act
Nil Nil

31. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk
threatening the Company’s existence are very minimal.
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32. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

As the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013) is not applicable to the company, Company has not developed and implemented any
Corporate Social Responsibility initiative.

33. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

34. CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business.

35. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

The disclosures required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 relating to remuneration of employees are not applicable to
the Company.

36. DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF CHAPTER V (ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS BY COMPANIES) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year. Hence this
provision is not applicable to the company.

37. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND:

This provision does not apply.
38. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

39. ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, is available
on the Company's website and can be accessed at:
http://demo.oasisweb.in/smartcitytumakuru/NewTemplate/AboutUsNew.aspx#Annual

40. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

As per Article 24.9 of Articles of Association, the accounts of the company shall be audited
by Statutory Auditors appointed as per section 139(5) & 139(7) of the Companies Act which shall
be appointed by Hon’ble Comptroller and Auditor General of India. Accordingly, the office of the
Comptroller and Auditor General being constitutional authority made appointment of M/s Belur &
Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 000416S) for the Financial year
2020-21.
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41. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No such order is passed by any Regulator.

42. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

As per the Independent Audit Report submitted by Statutory Auditor of the Company i.e.
M/s Belur & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Company has an adequate internal financial control
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as on March 31, 2021.

43. DETAILS OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS ISSUED BY THE COMPANY
DURING THE YEAR UNDER REPORT:

The Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the company has not
issued equity shares with differential rights pursuant to the provisions of section 43 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014.

44, DETAILS OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES ISSUED BY THE COMPANY, DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REPORT:

The Board of Directors report that during the year under report the company has not
issued sweat equity shares pursuant to the provisions of section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rules 13(8) of the Companies (Share Capital and debentures) Rules, 2014.

45. DETAILS OF ESOP SCHEME:

The Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the company has not
offered equity shares under ESOP scheme to the employees of the Company pursuant to the
provisions of section 62(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

46. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES:

The Company has not obtained credit rating for any of its securities during the Financial
Year 2020-21.

47. DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS:

The provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
company.

48. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors would like to thank the Government of India, especially the Ministry of
Housing & Urban Affairs, Government of Karnataka and Urban Development Department for their
valuable advice, guidance and co-operation. They also take this opportunity to extend their whole-
hearted gratitude to Managing Director and staff of Karnataka Urban Infrastructure Development
and Finance Corporation (Nodal Agency) for their timely guidance and support in implementing
the projects of the Smart City. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for
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efficiently running the affairs of the Board and the Company by the Chairman and Managing
Director and valuable services rendered by the officers and staff of the Company during the year
under report.

The Board also wish to place on record its gratitude to the Hon’ble Member of Parliament,
Tumakuru and Hon'ble Member of Legislative Assembly, Tumakuru Constituency for their
guidance & support. The Board also expresses its gratitude to the Deputy Commissioner,
Tumakuru for the guidance and support extended in the execution of the projects. The Board also
places on record its appreciation to the Worshipful Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Commissioner,
Corporators and other officials of Tumakuru City Corporation for the support extended in
implementation of the projects. The Directors also thank the co-operation extended by various
Departments. The Directors also place their thanks to the media for disseminating the information
on the projects to the electronic and print media.

The Directors also place on record their appreciation for valuable services extended by
the Project Management Consultants viz, M/s IPE Global Ltd. New Delhi, as Lead member of
consortium and M/s Grant Thornton India LLP and M/s Aryavartha Design Consultants LLP as
members of consortium.

For Tumakuru Smart City Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bangalore Shri. Rakesh Singh, 1Aas.  Shri B T Rangaswamy KM.AsS.
Date: 30.09.2021 Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00828166 DIN: 08301675
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Annexure-I

Particulars of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 (Five)
times i.e. on 15.05.2020, 12.08.2020, 07.10.2020, 18.12.2020 and 06.03.2021. The maximum gap
between any two Board Meetings was not exceeding 120 days. Details of directors’ attendance are

under:
Number of Board Whether
I\Sl:;. Name of the Director Designation . meetings z:éi?ﬁi? dl i;t
eld Attended 18.12.2020

1 | Shri. Rakesh Singh 1as. Chairman 5 5 Yes

2 Smt. Fareeda Begum Nominee Director 4 4 Yes

3 | Shri. B G Krishnappa Nominee Director 1 1 NA

4 Smt. Shashikala Nominee Director 4 4 Yes

5 | Smt. Nazima Bi Nominee Director 1 1 NA

6 | Dr.M T Reju 1As. Nominee Director 2 2 Yes

7 | Dr.J Ravishankar 1As. Nominee Director 2 0 NA

8 | Smt. B B Cauvery 1As. Nominee Director 5 3 Yes

9 | Shri. T HM Kumar 1As. Nominee Director 3 1 No

10 | Ms. Charulata Somal 1As. Nominee Director 3 3 NA

11 | Dr. K Rakesh Kumar 1As. Nominee Director 4 4 Yes

12 | Shri. T Bhoobalan 1As. Nominee Director 1 1 NA

13 | Shri. M B Rajesh Gowda 1.As. Nominee Director 5 2 Yes

14 | Shri. Y S Patil IAS Nominee Director 1 1 NA

15 | Shri. B T Rangaswamy KM.AS. Mallnaglng 4 4 Yes
Director

16 | Smt. Renuka KM.AS. Nominee Director 4 4 Yes

17 | Dr. Rekha Jagannath Inde.pendent 5 5 Yes
Director

18 | Shri. VV R Sastry Independent 5 5 Yes
Director

19 | Shri. Shakeel Ahmad Sharief Nominee Director 5 5 Yes

20 | Smt. Deepashree HM Nominee Director 5 5 Yes

21 | Shri. T Bhoobalan 1.As. Ma.maging 1 1 NA
Director

22 | Shri. Bhupendra Bahuguna css. | Nominee Director 5 4 Yes
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TUMAKURU
SMART CITY LIMITED, TUMAKURU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sT MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Tumakuru Smart City Limited, Tumakuru
for the year ended 31st March 2021 is in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Companies Act 2013 are responsible for expressing opinion on these
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on the independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 07.09.2021 which supersedes their earlier Audit
Report dated 02.08.2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Tumakuru Smart City Limited, Tumakuru
for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and Company personnel
and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revisions made in the statutory auditor’s report, to give effect to some of
my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, [ have no further comments to offer
upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Bengaluru
Date: 13 September 2021 Sd/-
(Anup Francis Dungdung)
Accountant General (Audit II)
Karnataka, Bengaluru.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT - REVISED

TO THE MEMBERS OF TUMAKURU SMART CITY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:
Qualified Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of TUMAKURU SMART CITY LIMITED, (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. Subsequently the audit report has undergone revision in the light of the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India. This report supersedes our earlier report dated 02nd August 2021

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India of state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and loss, changes in Equity, and its
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date except for the effects of the matter described in the basis
of qualified Opinion section of this report.

Basis of Qualified Opinion:

1. The Company has Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rs. 37.47 lakh as at end of March 2021
despite the fact that in the absence of an independent revenue stream for the Company, there is no
possibility that sufficient taxable profit would be available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. This resulted in over valuation of the deferred tax asset.

2. The Company had accounted an amount of Rs. 78.49 lakh being forfeiture of EMD from
Contractors as other miscellaneous income during 2019-20 (Current year nil) and the Company
was advised by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India to revisit the treatment to ensure
uniform accounting treatment at par with other smart cities and in consultation with
Government. Pending clarification in this regard, this was to be treated as Liability. During the
Financial Year 2020-21, the company has not formulated the required accounting policy and also
not treated this as liability in the financial year 2020-21. Though the transaction relates to 2019-
20, the following aspect needs to be considered. As assets created are transferred to various
agencies and are not retained as assets of the Company, any penalty recovered would not form
part of the income of the Company and will have to be reduced from either the CWIP or the cost of
asset if already transferred or depicted as liability. This resulted in understatement of liability.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:

We draw attention to Note no 1 (i) (‘c) of the financial statement which states that the company is
special purpose vehicle incorporated for implementation of the smart city projects and company is
receiving grants from Government of India as well as Government of Karnataka for the first five years
of implementation. Further as stated in the note, as per smart city guidelines issued by Government of
India, company can have its own independent revenue stream line to continue its objects beyond 5t
year. The financial year 2020-21 is the 4t year and even though company has identified certain
independent revenue streamline, implementation along with local government bodies is in process and
no independent revenue is generated as on 31 march 2021. Further, company did not receive any
further communication from the government for the support beyond 5t year.

The above events, conditions and other matters as set forth in note 1(i)(‘c) indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information:

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statement, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Managements for the Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, Changes in Equity and Cash
Flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s
Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material, if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
“Annexure - A” of this Auditor’s Report. This description forms part of our Auditor’s Report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 we give in the “Annexure - B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequire by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(2) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes in equity and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(d) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(e) In respect of matter the described under the head ‘Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern’ above, we are of the opinion that, without the continued support from the
Government of India and Government of Karnataka beyond 5t year, the going concern and
the functioning of the company may be impacted.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure - C".
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(g) With respect to directions under section 143(5), refer to our separate report in “Annexure -
D"

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us.

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Belur & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000416S

Sd/-
ChyavanK S
Partner
Membership No. 234673
UDIN: 21234673AAAABT3967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07.09.2021
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Annexure - A to the Auditor’s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of Auditor’s Report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial statements
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For Belur & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000416S

Sd/-
ChyavanK S
Partner
Membership No. 234673
UDIN: 21234673AAAABT3967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07.09.2021
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Annexure - B to the Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure - B referred to in our Independent Auditors Report to the members
of Tumakuru Smart City Limited on the accounts for the period ended 31st March, 2021 and on the
basis of such checks of the Company as was considered appropriate and on verification of the books
and records of the company as was considered appropriate and on the basis of the information and
explanations given during the course of audit, we report that;

I.

ii.

iil.

iv.

vi

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:
The Company does not have land as Fixed Assets and reporting as required under paragraph 3
(i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, for fixed assets other than land are as below;

a. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets other than Land.

b. The company has a policy of physical verification all fixed assets. During the year the
company has physically verified all of its fixed assets and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, having regard to the size of the company and
nature of the business the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting as required under
clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting as required under clause 3(iii) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any transaction of the nature specified in Section 185 & 186
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting as required under clause 3(iv) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public. The Company does not have any
unclaimed deposits and accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
is not applicable.

. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus reporting required under clause 3(vi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax, GST and any other statutory dues
to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us all statutory dues of Income-tax or GST or Duty of Customs or
Duty of Excise, as applicable, have been deposited on time or with marginal delays and there
is no dispute pending on the part of the Company.
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viil.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any loans from any Financial
Institutions or Banks. The company has not issued any debentures.

The company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the period under review.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the
Company, its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

The managerial persons are appointed as a deputation from Government Karnataka and
remuneration is provided as per the government pay scale and management will not decide on
the remuneration to the managerial persons. Remuneration to Key Managerial Persons is
disclosed under Notes to the Financial Statements and the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013, is complied.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
books of account and records, we report that transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
books of account and records, we report that the company hasn’t entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For Belur & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000416S

Sd/-
ChyavanK S
Partner
Membership No. 234673
UDIN: 21234673AAAABT3967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07.09.2021
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors’ Report of the even date on the Financial
Statements of Tumakuru Smart City Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tumakuru Smart
City Limited (“The Company”) as of March 31st, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: The Company’s management
is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility: Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: A Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: Because of
the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31st, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Further company is required
to improve its internal control procedures in respect of the handing over and completion of
necessary documentation for the completed projects to the respective government department/
local bodies. This suggested process improvement does not have any impact on our opinion.

For Belur & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000416S

Sd/-
ChyavanK S
Partner
Membership No. 234673
UDIN: 21234673AAAABT3967
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07.09.2021
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Annexure - D Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013:

As a part of engagement, we are required to report on specific matters listed in the directions under
143(5) of Companies Act, 2013. For financial year 2020-21, we report as under on specific matters
required to be reported, under the response section:

SL.

No. Specific matter requiring comment/ report Yes No NA

Remarks

Whether all banks accounts/Fixed Deposits have
1 | been opened with banks/ proper authorization and | Yes
approvals as per the offer said delegation of powers?

Whether there was a periodical system of
2 | preparation of Bank reconciliation statement and | Yes
whether they were produced for verification to audit

Whether bank reconciliation of the main account
3 1 Yes
and all subsidiary bank accounts were done?

Was the authorization to operate the bank accounts No
were given to single authority?

Whether the interest for the entire duration of fixed
5 . . Yes
deposits was accounted in the books of account?

NA | Company does
not hold
Physical cash

Whether physical verification of cash was taken
place periodically?

Whether the cash in hand as shown in the balance NA
7 | sheet tallies with the certificate of physical
verification of cash?

Is there register of Fixed Deposits showing amounts,
8 | maturity dates, rates of interest and dates for | Yes
payment of interest?

[s there a follow up system to ensure that interest on

: o ; Yes
Fixed Deposits is received on due dates?

Is there a follow-up system to ensure that transfer of
10 | matured amount of Fixed Deposits is done without | Yes
any delay?

No The company
is  obtaining
confirmation

statement at
the year end.
Further  the

. . . compan is
Whether bank confirmation statements are obtained pany

11 | periodically from the banks for all accounts: SB havmg
. . Internet

accounts, Current accounts and Fixed deposits? .
banking

facility and on
a monthly

basis Bank
Statement is
obtained

directly from
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the  Banking
portal
Including the
12 Whether confirmation of balances in respect of all Yes Bank
bank balances tally with banks statements? Reconciliation
Statement
Whether Fixed deposits and interest as per Fixed
13 | Deposit register tally with the | Yes
confirmation/certificate issued by the bank?
Year end
confirmations
Whether the confirmation statements received from Sﬁ;iggﬁsfi?
14 | banks are authenticated and in the letterhead by the | Yes .
authenticated
bank?
on the
letterhead by
the bank.
In case of any difference observed in the above check NA
15 | whether the same was adjusted in the subsequent
year?
Whether external confirmation were obtained from
16 | Banks in the test checked cases, if so details thereof | Yes
with
No No lapses
Whether any of the aforesaid lapses were brought were .brought
. : : out in the
out in the report of the Internal Financial controls by
17 . . ) . report of
the statutory auditor, if not, whether audit enquiry
. Internal
was issued? : :
Financial
control
For Belur & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000416S

Sd/-

ChyavanK S

Partner

Membership No. 234673
UDIN: 21234673AAAABT3967
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07.09.2021
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31sT MARCH 2021

Particulars Note As at 31.03.2021 | Asat 31.03.2020
(AmountinRs.) | (Amountin Rs.)
Assets
Non- Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 20,52,156 24,07,492
Other Intangible Assets 4,24,847 11,81,169
Total 24,77,003 35,88,661
Financial Assets
Telephone Deposits 3 2,091 2,091
Deferred Tax Assets 4 37,47,461 36,54,603
Total 37,49,552 36,56,694
Total Non-Current Assets 62,26,555 72,45,355
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 2,32,15,15,374 1,48,80,34,234
Deposits and TDS under MAT provision 3C 10,00,278 10,00,278
Loans & Advances 3 19,08,04,026 30,29,23,558
Project Works 6 3,11,84,16,691 1,55,21,81,411
Other Assets 7 46,61,435 1,22,65,583
Total Current Assets 5,63,63,97,804 3,35,64,05,064
Profit / Loss Account Balance 15 2,36,56,448 2,35,46,727
TOTAL ASSETS 5,66,62,80,807 3,38,71,97,146
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Place: Tumakuru
Date: 02.08.2021

As per our report of even date
For Belur & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000416S

Sd/-
Chyavan K S
Partner
M. No. 234673

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rakesh Singh 1as.
Chairman
DIN: 00828166

Sd/-
MuraliB S
Company Secretary
M. No. A51730

Sd/-

B T Rangaswamy K.M.AS.

Managing Director
DIN: 08301675

Sd/-

K A Srinivasa KS.AS.
Chief Finance Officer



BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31sT MARCH 2021

As at As at
Particulars Note 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) | (Amount in Rs.)
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 8 10,00,000 10,00,000
Other Equity - -
Total Equity 10,00,000 10,00,000
Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities

Project Grant 9A 5,34,86,37,313 3,22,41,88,590
éf;ll{[nlstratlon and Office Expenditure (Capital) 9B 21,30,04,505 5.95,63,719
Other Non-Current liabilities 10 3,07,68,224 532,11,404

Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,59,24,10,042 | 3,33,69,63,713

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables

Dues to Micro and small Enterprises - -

Dues to creditors other than Micro and small

Enterprises 11 6,52,91,572 4,62,87,795

Other Current liabilities 12 75,79,193 29,45,638

Total current liabilities 7,28,70,765 4,92,33,433

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,66,62,80,807 | 3,38,71,97,146
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Tumakuru
Date: 02.08.2021

Sd/- Sd/-

As per our report of even date Rakesh Singh 1. B T Rangaswamy KMAS.
For Belur & Co,, Chairman Managing Director
Chartered Accountants DIN: 00828166 DIN: 08301675
FRN: 000416S

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Chyavan K S MuraliB S K A Srinivasa K.s.As.
Partner Company Secretary Chief Finance Officer
M. No. 234673 M. No. A51730

61



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sT MARCH 2021

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note | ~31stMarch2021 | 31stMarch 2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
INCOME
Revenue from Operations - -
Other Income 13 4,00,04,512 78,48,882
Prior Period Adjustment 14 - -
TOTAL INCOME 4,00,04,512 78,48,882

EXPENSES
Employee Benefit Expenses 16A 3,08,48,599 1,59,53,125
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 2 14,45,362 30,84,390
Other Expenses 17 79,13,130 77,37,069

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,02,07,091 2,67,74,584
Profit / Loss Before Tax -2,02,579 -1,89,25,702
!Fr;c;rest on late payment of MAT Income 16B i 50,826
Tax Expenses - -
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax Charge /credit -92,858 -3,67,932
Total Tax Expenses -92,858 -3,67,932
Profit/ (Loss) for the year -1,09,721 -1,86,08,596
Other Comprehensive Income 13 - -
Earning per equity share
Equity Shares of par value Rs. 100 each
Basic -11 -1,861
Diluted -11 -1,861
Number of shares used in computing ) )
earnings Per share
Basic 10,000 10,000
Diluted 10,000 10,000
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Place: Tumakuru
Date: 02.08.2021

As per our report of even date
For Belur & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000416S

Sd/-
Chyavan K S
Partner
M. No. 234673

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Rakesh Singh 1as.
Chairman
DIN: 00828166

Sd/-

MuraliB S
Company Secretary
M. No. A51730

Sd/-

B T Rangaswamy KM.AS.

Managing Director
DIN: 08301675

Sd/-
K A Srinivasa KS.AS.
Chief Finance Officer



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2021

Particulars

As at 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

As at
31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss Before tax -2,02,579 -1,89,25,702
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortization 14,45,362 30,84,390
Loss on disposal of assets 19,605 -
Interest on late payment of MAT Income Tax - -50,826
Interest Income - -
Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital 12,62.388 11,5892,138

changes

Working Capital Adjustments:

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Assets

-1,44,65,11,600

-1,60,93,19,986

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liability

2,36,37,330

2,95,69,109

Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Liability

-2,24,43,180

3,94,35,024

Operating Profit / (Loss) after working capital changes

-1,44,40,55,062

-1,55,62,07,991

Cash flow from extraordinary items

Cash generated from operations

-1,44,40,55,062

-1,55,62,07,991

Net cash flow from/(used in) Operating
Activities [A]

-1,44,40,55,062

-1,55,62,07,991

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment -3,53,307 -3,92,860
Sale / Reduction in Property Plant and Equipment - -
Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities [B] -3,53,307 -3,92,860
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt of Capital Grant 2,04,83,11,750 76,89,06,256
Receipt of Administration & Office Expenditure Grant 15,34,40,786 5,95,63,719
Interest on Capital Grant 7,61,36,973 12,25,12,486
Net Cash from Financing Activities [C] 2,27,78,89,509 95,09,82,461
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash 83,34,81,140 -60,56,18,390

Equivalents [A+B+C]

Cash & Cash Equivalents Opening Balance

1,48,80,34,234

2,09,36,52,624

Cash & Cash Equivalents Closing Balance*

2,32,15,15,374

1,48,80,34,234

83,34,81,140

-60,56,18,390
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*Cash & Cash Equivalents Closing Balance

(a) Cash on hand

(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current and SB accounts 8,15,15,370 33,80,34,234
(ii) In Fixed deposit accounts 2,24,00,00,004 1,15,00,00,000
2,32,15,15,374 1,48,80,34,234

1. Cash and cash equivalent include cash in hand and demand deposits with the bank, highly liquid
investments, that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2021 and the relative Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date.

3. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect Method in consonance with
the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) - 7 on Cash Flow Statements issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the reallocations required for the purpose are

as made by the Company.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Place: Tumakuru
Date: 02.08.2021

As per our report of even date
For Belur & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000416S

Sd/-
Chyavan K S
Partner
M. No. 234673

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rakesh Singh 1as.
Chairman
DIN: 00828166

Sd/-
MuraliB S
Company Secretary
M. No. A51730
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B T Rangaswamy KM.AS.

Managing Director
DIN: 08301675

sd/-

K A Srinivasa K.s.AS.
Chief Finance Officer



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital:

Particulars No. of Amount
shares
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed and Fully
paid up
As at 31st March 2021 10,000 10,00,000
As at 31st March 2020 10,000 10,00,000
B. Other Equity:
Reserves and Surplus _ Items of
(Deficit) in Other
Particulars General Other the Compreh
statement of .
Reserve | Reserves . ensive
profit and Income
loss

As at 01st April 2020 - - | -2,35,46,727 -
Profit/(Loss) of the period - - -1,09,721 -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) - - - -
Transferred to Retained ) ) i i
Earnings/Any other reserves
As at 31st March 2021 - -1 -2,36,56,448 -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Note No. 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Tumakuru Smart City Limited [CIN - U74999KA2017PLC099774] (TSCL or the company) is a
public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’). The registered office of the company is situated at Mahalakshmi Arcade, S.S. Puram Main
Road, Coffee Board Colony, Tumakuru- 572102. TSCL is Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) formed
under Smart City Mission of the Government of India for implementation of smart city project in
Tumakuru. The core objective of Tumakuru Smart City is to provide Area Based Development,
quality based life of Tumakuru citizens with clean and sustainable environment and get advanced
version of living standard.

TSCL was incorporated on February 06, 2017. The first IND AS financial statements of the
company are presented since its first year of accounts.

i) Summary of significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgments:
Basis of preparation of financial statements:
a. Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the ‘Act’) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
up to 31st March 2021 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the directors as on 31st March 2021.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis unless otherwise stated.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the
Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets/inputs for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/ non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

b) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have reported absolute figures.

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS requires that the
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could
differ from those of estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future
years. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:
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c) Going Concern:

The company is a Public Limited Company set up with the specific task of implementing the
projects of Smart City projects of Union Government in Tumkur city. The company’s Office
maintenance and Administration costs are met by the grant received from Government of India
(UNION) and Government of Karnataka (State) as Administration & Office Expenses Grants. As
per the Smart City guidelines, government will support the entity with grants for the 5 years
period. Further, company is allowed to identify its own independent revenue streamline such as
local taxes, cess, parking fee, rental income etc. However as on 31st March 2021, the company
does not have any independent revenue streamline and management is taking necessary steps to
generate revenue in few of the projects which are under implementation through parking fees,
building rent with local government bodies. Considering the support from the government and
future plans of independent revenue stream, the financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

ii) Revenue Recognition:

The Government grant that is received/receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
incurred in a previous financial year or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the person with no further related costs, shall be recognized as income of the period in which it
is receivable.

iii) Government Grants:

Government Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the company will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period in which
the company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which grants intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue in the
balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants of the nature of promoter's contribution should be credited to capital reserve
and treated as a part of shareholder’s funds.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the company with no future related
costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Based on the qualification of Independent Auditors for the year 2017-18 the Project Management
Consultancy expenses is treated as Project expenditure from year 2019-20 onwards.

iv) Employee Benefits:
a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and
other entitlement. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefit to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognized as expense as the related service is rendered by
employees.
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b) Post-Employment and Other Long-term employee benefits:

The employees working in the company are either on deputation from Government or on
contract/outsource basis and accordingly the Company does not provide and nor expect to
provide any post-employment and other long-term employee benefits to employees.

v) Taxation:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statements of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Income Tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The company offsets
current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for the taxable temporary differences. Then
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates/ tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

vi) Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation:

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at the cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and write down for, impairment if any. Direct costs are capitalized until
the assets are ready to be put to use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss as incurred. Property, plant and Equipment purchased in foreign currency are recorded at
cost, based on the exchange rate on the date of purchase.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of Property, plant and
equipment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of
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the Property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the
remaining asset.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset, without physical substance, held for use
in rendering of services or for administrative purposes. Intangible assets are recorded at the
consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of
assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the
statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant
gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are
reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets
as prescribed in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 or as estimated by the Management,
whichever is lower based on technical assessment.

Estimated
0,
Asset Block % o.f Salvage value Useful life Rate. Of_
estimated (S.L.M) : Depreciation
(in years)
Furniture & Fittings 5% 10 9.50%
Computers, Hardware & Software 5% 3 31.67%
Office Equipment's 5% 5 19.00%

vii) Impairment of Asset:

At each Balance Sheet date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists the Company estimates the recoverable amount. If
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount an impairment loss is recognized
in the profit and loss account to the extent the carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount.

viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short
term deposits which are callable on notice and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
The term deposit receipts are physically verified and found correct.

ix) Lease:

Operating Lease: Lease payments (excluding cost for services, such as insurance and
maintenance) are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line
basis over the lease term. The lease term is the non- cancellable period for which the lessee has
agreed to take on lease the asset together with any further periods for which the lessee has the
option to continue the lease of the asset, with or without further payment, which option at the
inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise.
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Finance Lease: Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalized at fair value of the asset
or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower.
Such leased assets are depreciated over the lower of estimated useful life of the asset or the lease
period.

x) Provisions & Contingent Liabilities:

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of recourses will be required to settle the obligation in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (Excluding retirement benefits) are
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control
of the company or

b) Present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

xi) Earnings Per Share:

In determining the Earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax. The
number of shares used in computing Basic Earnings per share is the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in computing Diluted
Earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving Basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year unless issued at a later date.

xii) Current/Non-Current classification:

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- [t is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
- [t is expected to be realized within twelve months after the date of reporting period or

- Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

70



- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- [t is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period

-There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. Current liabilities include the current portion of long term financial
liabilities.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified/ recasted wherever necessary
so as to make them comparable with the current year figures.

xiii) No provision made for the liabilities may arise in future like price escalation, variations and
others liabilities due to approval of EoT without penalty.

xiv) A Sum of Rs. 57.94 crores being the cost of project completed/handed over to concerned
Departments and Rs. 88.56 lakhs cost of dropped projects before 31-03-2021. To the extent of
this, the project Grant is reduced and balance reflected in the Balance Sheet.

xv) The Breakup of Expenditure on total Projects Rs. 311.81 crores as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

S1. Particulars Rupees in
No. Crores
1 | Physically/financial Completed projects but not Handed over to
concerned Department as they are under Maintenance/Defect 115.47
Liability Period.
2 | Ongoing Projects 196.34
Total 311.81

xvi) No provision for following expenses has been made though the same was accrued during the
reporting financial year 2020-21.

1. On the basis of minimum basic as per 6t Pay Commission the Salary of Rs. 11,13,422/-
(Excluding Entitlement) Sri. Shantharajanna, CE, who worked from Feb-2019 to Dec-2019 due to
non-receipt of Last Pay Certificate from the previous employer & AG’s Authorization Slip.

2. Entitlement of Sri. Shantharajanna, CE and Sri. Basavaraje Gowda, EE is also not paid for the
period.

xii) As per the comments raised by C&AG for the Financial Year 2017-18 on charging of P.M.C. fee
to statement of Profit & Loss instead of charging against capital grant, the same has been
capitalized and as per Mission Guidelines the P.M.C. fee [Capital Expenditure] is incurred out of
Administration and Office Expenditure-Grant received during the year and the balance left out
will be transferred to Revenue receipt of A & OE Grant. To the extent of A & OE Grant utilized for
payment of PMC Fee is reflected in the liability side of Balance Sheet under the caption A & OE
Grant (Capital Expenditure). As and when the PMC fee is capitalized and included in the cost of
the completion work the same will be reduced from A & OE Grant (Capital Expenditure).
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Property, Plant & Equipment and Other Intangible Assets:

The changes in carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Note No. 2

Amount in Rs.

Depreciati Depreciat Total
Gross Additions Deletions P Depreciati ion on . Net Block Net Block
. . Total as on on at the . Depreciati
DESCRIPTION | value ason during Total During 31.03.2021 Beginning on for the Deletion on as on as on ason
01.04.2020 | the Year the year 01.04.2020 Year During 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
the year
A- TANGIBLE
ASSETS
E&irllll::;e & 17,05,671 75,641 17,81,312 - 17,81,312 3,03,650 1,62,516 - 466,166 | 13,15146 | 14,02,021
Computers 17,46,559 1,65,800 19,12,359 1,37,711 17,74,648 14,09,963 2,63,446 1,30,859 15,42,550 2,32,098 3,36,596
Offlc.e 13,23,107 1,11,866 14,34,973 32,168 14,02,805 6,54,232 2,63,078 19,417 8,97,893 5,04,912 6,68,875
Equipment
Total-A 47,75,337 | 3,53,307 51,28,644 | 1,69,879 49,58,765 | 23,67,845 6,89,040 | 1,50,276 | 29,06,609 | 20,52,156 | 24,07,492
B- INTANGIBLE
ASSETS
Software 67,49,217 - 67,49,217 - 67,49,217 55,68,048 7,56,322 - 63,24,370 4,24,847 11,81,169
Gral::_;()tal 1,15,24,554 3,53,307 1,18,77,861 1,69,879 1,17,07,982 79,35,893 14,45,362 1,50,276 92,30,979 24,717,003 35,88,661
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Loans and Advances:

Note No. 3

Particulars

As at 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

A. Loans and Advances- Non-Current Assets

Secured and considered good

Unsecured and considered Good

Telephone Deposit 2,091 2,091
B. Loans and Advances- Current Assets
Mobilization advance (Secured By Bank guarantee) 1,49,36,000 4,88,86,000
Advances to suppliers 537 537
;]Z;gg:gefsntrlbutlon Works (KMDS & Health 17,58,67,489 25.40,37,021
Total 19,08,04,026 30,29,23,558
*KMDS 8,76,80,808 8,90,88,750
*Health Department GOK 8,81,86,681 16,49,48,271
17,58,67,489 25,40,37,021
C. Deposits and TDS Remitted under MAT
Provision
Self-Assessment Tax paid for 2018-19 3,89,534 3,89,534
TDS for the year 2018-19 6,10,744 6,10,744
TOTAL 10,00,278 10,00,278
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Note No. 4

Deferred Tax Assets:

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Deferred Tax Assets-Non Current Assets 36,54,603 32,86,671
Add: Deferred Tax Assets/(liability) 92,858 3,67,932
Total 37,47,461 36,54,603
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Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Note No. 5

Particulars

Asat 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks

In current, savings Bank and
Deposit accounts*

2,32,15,15,374

1,48,80,34,234

*The details of balances with
banks are as follows

State Bank of India current

52,91,933 1,12,78,946
Account
Union Bank of India Savings Bank 762,23 437 32,67,55,288
account
*Deposits
Federal Bank Limited Term deposit 66,00,00,000 -
Karnataka Gramin Bank Term Term deposit 58,00,00,000 30,00,00,000
deposit
Union Bank of India Term deposit 1,00,00,00,004 85,00,00,000

Total

2,32,15,15,374

1,48,80,34,234

*The term deposit receipts are physically verified and found correct.
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Project Works:

Note No. 6

Particulars

Asat 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Projects Payment

3,54,14,03,506

1,47,39,27,055

P M C Fee pending transfer to work

15,58,08,570

9,17,81,539

Tender Publication charges Works

94,52,077

80,02,842

Total

3,70,66,64,155

1,57,37,11,436

Less: Project Adjustment Account (Credit)

Less: Cost of completed project works/

handed over to concerned departments/ 58,82,47,464 2,15,30,025
Dropped projects

PMC Fee 1,65,59,214 4,36,281
Tender Publication charges Works 39,98,932 3,79,679
Project work Cost 56,76,89,318 2,07,14,065

Total Project Payment*

3,11,84,16,691

1,55,21,81,411

Completed but not handed over to concerned

1,15,48,29,558 82,19,00,000
Department
Projects Dropped - 88,56,000
Ongoing Projects 1,96,35,87,133 72,14,25,411

*Total

3,11,84,16,691

1,55,21,81,411

76




Note No.

Other Financial Assets:
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
TDS 15,03,626 1,04,99,183
Interest Accrued on Term /Fixed / Flexi deposit 31,57,809 17,66,400
Total 46,61,435 1,22,65,583
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Note No. 8

Share Capital:
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Amount Amount
No. of shares (in Rs.) No. of shares (in Rs.)
Authorized capital
20,000,000 Equity Shares 2,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000
of Rs.100 each
Total 2,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and
paid up capital
10,000 Equity Shares of
Rs.100 each® 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,00,000
Total 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,00,000

*At the time of incorporation the paid up capital of the Company is of Rs.10 lakhs, out of which
Rs. 5.00 lakhs will be from Government of Karnataka (GOK) and Rs.5.00 lakh from the Urban Local
Bodies (ULB) concerned. As per Smart City Mission Guideline Urban Local bodies holds the equity
holding on behalf of Government of India (GOI).

(a) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of shares in the Company:

Name of the share holder As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

No. of % No. of %
shares | holding shares | holding

Equity shares

Hon'ble Governor, Government of Karnataka 4,997 49.97 4,997 49.97

Tumakuru City Corporation 4,997 49,97 4,997 49,97

Others* 6 0.06 6 0.06
10,000 100 10,000 100

*Others

Mayor, Tumakuru City Corporation 1 0.01%

(Represented by Shri. B G Krishnappa) S0

Deputy Mayor, Tumakuru City Corporation 1 0.01%

(Represented by Smt. Nazima Bi) s

Managing Director, KUWS&DB 1 0.01%

(Represented by Shri.T HM Kumar 14:5)

Managing Director, KUIDFC. 1 0.01%

(Represented by Dr. M T Reju 1.A5)

Deputy Commlssmngr, Tumakuru 1 0.01%

(Represented by Shri. Y S Patil 1.A.5)

Managing Director, BESCOM 1 0.01%

(Represented by Shri. M B Rajesh Gowda, 1.A5) S

The above listed shares have been held by the aforesaid persons as registered holders, however
beneficial owner would be Government of Karnataka and Tumakuru City Corporation and all
regulatory formalities have been duly complied.
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(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting year is as given below:

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Particulars No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares (in Rs.) shares (in Rs.)

Number of equity shares at the beginning 10,000 | 10,00,000 10,000 | 10,00,000
of the year
Number of equity shares issued during ) i i i
the year
Number of equity shares outstanding at 10,000 | 10,00,000 10,000 | 10,00,000
the end of the year

(c) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of
Rs. 100/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(d) Equity Shares issued otherwise than for cash and bought back:

Year 2020-21 | Year 2019-20

Particulars (Aggregate No. | (Aggregate No.
of Shares) of Shares)

Equity Shares:
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment . .

. . . Nil Nil
being received in cash
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares Nil Nil
Shares bought back Nil Nil
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Non-Current Liabilities:

A. Project Grant:

Note No. 9

Particulars

Asat 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

Asat 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Gol- Opening Balance 1,83,84,06,256 1,06,95,00,000
Received during the year 93,00,00,000 79,00,00,000
GoK - Opening Balance 1,06,95,00,000 1,06,95,00,000
Received during the year 1,69,00,00,000 -
Less Equity Capital - -
Capital Grant for Project 5,52,79,06,256 2,92,90,00,000
Less: Cost of completed project works/ handed

over to concerned departments/dropped 57,16,88,250 2,10,93,744
projects

Adq: Interest income Transferred to respective 39,24,19,307 31,62,82,334
capital grants

Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,34,86,37,313 3,22,41,88,590

*In absence of specific instruction/Mission Guideline for utilization of interest earned on Grant
balances held in bank, the same has been accounted as separate fund in the books of account and
recorded under Non-Current Liabilities in the financial statement of the company.

As per KUIDFC letter No.KUIDFC/SCM/5/Tumakuru/2020-21 part-4 dt:14.06.2021, the Interest
earned on GoK Grant shall be refunded to contingency fund of GoK to that extent the interest earned
will be reduced after obtaining the approval from Competent authority.

B. Administration and office Expenditure Grant:

Particulars Asat 31.03.2021 Asat 31.03.2020
(Amountin Rs.) (Amountin Rs.)

Gol- Opening Balance 5,95,63,719 -
Received during the year 5,00,00,000 6,00,00,000
GoK - Opening Balance - -
Received during the year 12,00,00,000 -
Less Equity Capital - -
A & OE Grant 22,95,63,719 6,00,00,000
Add: Interest Income Transferred to respective
capital grants* ] )
Less: Cost of completed project works/
handed over to concerned 1,65,59,214 4,36,281
departments/dropped projects
Total Non-Current Liabilities 21,30,04,505 5,95,63,719

* 1. In absence of specific instruction/Mission Guideline for utilization of interest earned on Grant
balances held in bank, the same has been accounted as separate fund in the books of account and
recorded under Non-Current Liabilities in the financial statement of the company.

I1. Calculation of A&OE Grant transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars Amount (Rs. in Cr)
A&OE Grant Received during the Year 22.00
Gol 5.00
GoK 17.00
Less: A) Amount retained by KUIDFC towards their A&OE 1.00
B) PMC & ETP Charges 17.00 18.00
Balance transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 4.00
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Financial Liabilities (Other Non-Current Liabilities):

Note No. 10

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

Particulars (Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Security Deposit /EMD 58,72,437 48,35,363
Additional Security Deposit 1,50,032 4,40,537
Retention Money 9,174 27,672
Deducted from contractor bill 2,47,36,581 4,79,07,832
Total 3,07,68,224 5,32,11,404

All the above liabilities are not required to reinstate as on the balance sheet.
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Note No. 11

Trade Payables:
Particulars Asat 31.03.2021 | Asat31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Trade Payables 6,52,91,572 4,62,87,795
MSMED/SSI Undertakings - -
Total 6,52,91,572 4,62,87,795

There are no Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days at the Balance Sheet date other than those disclosed below.
The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises have been identified on the basis of information available
with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 | Asat 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Nil Nil
Act, 2006
Interest accrued & due to suppliers under MSMED . .
Nil Nil
Act, on the above amount
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) Nil Nil
beyond the appointed day, during the year
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (other . .
Nil Nil
than Sec 16)
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, . .
. Nil Nil
(Section 16)
Interest due & payable to suppliers under MSMED . .
Nil Nil
Act, for payments already made
Interest accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil
the year to suppliers under MSMED Act.
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Note No. 12

Other Current Liabilities:

Particulars Asat 31.03.2021 | Asat31.03.2020

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
(i) Employees Provident Fund 50,227 46,455
(ii) Royalty Reserved/NPS 23,85,644 30,042
(iii) GST 51,36,322 28,65,541
(iv) Professional Tax 7,000 3,600
Total 75,79,193 29,45,638
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Note No. 13

Income:
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended 31.03.2021 | ended 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Revenue from operations Nil Nil
Other Income - -
Interest Income - -
Revenue Grant transferred to Income* 4,00,00,000 -
Other miscellaneous 4,512 78,48,882
Comprehensive Income Nil Nil
Total Other Income 4,00,04,512 78,48,882
* Calculation of A&OE Grant transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars Amount (Rs. in Cr)
A&OQE Grant Received during the Year 22.00
Gol 5.00
GoK 17.00
Less: A) Amount retained by KUIDFC towards their A&OE 1.00
B) PMC & ETP Charges 17.00 18.00
Balance transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 4.00
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Prior Period Adjustment (Net):

Note No. 14

Particulars

For the Year ended
31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

For the Year ended
31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Prior Period Adjustment

Nil

Nil
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Profit and Loss Account:

Note No. 15

For the Year ended For the Year
Particulars 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Balance b/f - Loss for the year 2019-20 -2,35,46,727 -49,38,131
Profit for the year 2020-21 -1,09,721 -1,86,08,596
P&L Balance as on 31.03.2021 -2,36,56,448 -2,35,46,727
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Employee Benefit Expenses:

Note No.16A

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)

Salaries, wages & Other Benefits 2,85,57,845 1,50,62,683
Contributions to provident & Other Funds

Provident Fund 4,81,660 3,24,850

National pension Scheme 1,96,170 51,047

Leave encashment and pension 16,12,924 5,14,545

Total 3,08,48,599 1,59,53,125

The Company has deputation/Contract employees for which Tax Deducted at Source is done
under section 192A/192B of Income Tax Act 1961 respectively.

Note No. 16B
For the Year ended | For the Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Interest on late payment of MAT Income Tax - 50,826
Total - 50,826
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Other Expenses:

Note No. 17

For the Year For the Year
Sl Particulars ended ended
No. 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
1 | Power and Fuel 2,87,561 3,83,569
2 | Rentincluding lease rentals 14,29,548 13,42,401
3 | Repairs and maintenance 15,53,097 9,23,141
4 | Communication 36,027 37,668
5 | Travelling and conveyance - 4,65,712
6 | Printing & stationery 1,44,972 2,81,821
7 | Legal and professional Charges * 2,45,680 2,06,700
8 | Directors sitting fees 2,50,000 1,99,000
9 | Conveyance to Board of Directors - 42,000
10 | Sitting Fee- others 52,000 33,000
11 | General office and other Expenses** 28,25,948 4,43,149
12 (Allrllg;;cl(;r; geTr:;)I}kiiatlon Statutory Audit Fee 88,500 88,500
13 | Out of Pocket Expenses 12,000 12,000
14 | Tender Publications 43,844 5,34,339
15 | IEC Activities 3,42,500 7,68,320
16 | Foreign Tour & Expenses - 14,32,307
17 gzsie?lis:spromotion and development 581,848 543,442
18 | Loss on Disposal of Assets 19,605 -
Total 79,13,130 77,37,069

*Legal and professional Charges included Tax Audit fee Rs. 25,000/- (Including Tax), ROC Filing &
other certification Fees Rs. 29,500/-, other tax/professional consultant (GST/PT) fees 0of Rs.1,91,180/-

** General office and other Expenses for the current year include Rs. 20.00 lakhs towards GIS software
renewal charges paid to KUIDFC and the balance of Rs. 8,25,948/- towards office and other

expenditures of TSCL.

*#*Auditors Remuneration - Statutory Audit Fee Rs. 50,000/-(Excluding Tax) and Audit fee 2019-20

Rs.17,500/-, Out of Packet Expenditure Rs.12,000/-.

For the Year For the Year ended
Operating Lease ended 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)

Mlnlmum lease payments for renting of office 14,04,000 13,42,401
premise
The Company has entered into operating lease
arrangements for Office premises, which are not
terminable in nature. Such leases are generally for - -
a period of 60 months having escalation clause of
6% every year
At the balance sheet date, the commitments of
operating leases were as follows: i i
Not later than one year (excluding taxes) 12,83,650 12,83,650
Later th'an one year, not later than five years 12,29,950 12,29,950
(excluding taxes)
More than five years (excluding taxes) - -
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Note No. 18

Expenditure & Earning in Foreign Exchange:

For the Year For the Year ended
Particulars ended 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Expenditure & Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
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Earnings Per Share:

Note No. 19

For the Year ended

For the Year

Particulars 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)

(a) Basic
Net profit / (loss) for the year from operations i )
attributable to the equity shareholders 1,09,721 1,86,08,596
Weighted average number of equity shares 10,000 10,000
Par value per share 100 100
Earnings per share from operations - Basic -11 -1,861
(b) Diluted -11 -1,861
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Commitments and contingent liabilities:

Note No. 20

Particulars

For the Year ended
31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

For the Year ended
31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Capital commitments - Projects

5,58,34,00,000

6,92,50,00,000
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Related Party Transactions:

Note No. 21

A. Summary of transactions with related parties during the year is as follows:

Key Management Personnel

Remuneration Paid

For the Year
ended 31.03.2021
(Amount in Rs.)

For the Year
ended 31.03.2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Mr. T Bhoobalan (01-04-2020 to 30-06-2020) 1,37,051 56,808
Mr. B. T Rangaswamy (01-07-2020 to 31-03-2021) 12,79,962 4,00,851
Mr. K A Srinivasa (From April 2020 to March 2021) 12,88,317 11,46,053
Mr. Murali B S (From April 2020 to March 2021) 9,44,225 2,89,000

B. Names of related parties & description of relationship:

Ref Names of related parties

Description of relationship

A. | Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. T Bhoobalan (01-04-2020 to 30-06-2020)

Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. B. T Rangaswamy (01-07-2020 to 31-03-2021)

Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. K A Srinivasa (01-04 2020 to 31-03-2021)

Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Murali B S (01-04-2020 to 31-03-2021)

Company Secretary
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Government Grant as required under Ind AS 20:

Note No. 22

During the year, the Company has received grant from Government of India and Government of

Karnataka as per below table:

For the year For the year
Cabital G Revenue ended ended
Particulars ap‘.taR rant Grant 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) (inRs.) (in Rs.)
Total Total

Opening Balance 2,90,89,06,256 5,95,63,719 2,96,84,69,975 2,14,00,00,000
Grant Received -
Government of India
Government of India (KUIDFC letter
dated 28.09.2020 Ref No.UDD 246 46,50,00,000 2,50,00,000 49,00,00,000 85,00,00,000
CSS 2020 Bengaluru dt:10-08-2020)
Government of India [KUIDFC letter
dated 02.01.2021 Ref No.UDD 219 46,50,00,000 2,50,00,000 49,00,00,000 -
CSS 2020 Bengaluru dt:19-11-2020)
Government of Karnataka
Government of Karnataka (KUIDFC
letter dated 18.03.2021 Ref No.UDD
06 CSS 2021 Bengaluru dt:22-02- 1,69,00,00,000 17,00,00,000 1,86,00,00,000 -
2021)

Total 5,52,89,06,256 27,95,63,719 5,80,84,69,975 2,99,00,00,000
Less: Cost of completed Project
Works/Handed Over to concerned 57,16,88,250 1,65,59,214 58,82,47,464 2,15,30,025
departments/dropped projects
Utilization for Admin & Operating i 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 6,00,00,000
expenses
Project Grant Balance attheendof |, oo ) 16006 | 21,30,04,505 | 5,17,02,22,511 | 2,90,84,69,975

the year - (A)

Add: Interest on Project Fund

Interest Income Funded-Opening

31,62,82,334 - 31,62,82,334 19,37,69,848
Balance
Add: Interest earned during the year 7,61,36,973 - 7,61,36,973 12,25,12,486
Interest fund Balance at the end of 3924,19,307 i 39,24,19,307 31,62,82,334
the year-(B)
Total project Grant at the end of
the year (Including Equity Share 5,34,96,37,313 21,30,04,505 5,56,26,41,818 3,22,47,52,309

Capital of Rs. 10,00,000/-) A+B

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs the company has
adopted Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
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Deferred Tax Asset:

Note No. 23

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
AS - 22 : Deferred Tax Asset
Depreciation as per IT Act for the Year 10,88,215
Depreciation as per companies Act for the Year 14,45,362
Difference (3,57,147)
Tax @ 25% + surcharge 4% i.e. 26% (92,858)

not considered for calculation of Deferred tax asset.

Note: The unabsorbed losses of the current year to be carried forward is Rs.1,54,568/- as per
Income Tax Calculation. Since the probability of set of losses in future years is uncertain, the Loss is

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Tumakuru
Date: 02.08.2021

As per our report of even date Sd/-
For Belur & Co., Rakesh Singh 1as.
Chartered Accountants Chairman
FRN: 000416S DIN: 00828166
Sd/- Sd/-
Chyavan K S MuraliB S
Partner Company Secretary
M. No. 234673 M. No. A51730
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B T Rangaswamy KM.AS.
Managing Director
DIN: 08301675

Sd/-
K A Srinivasa K.S.AS.
Chief Finance Officer
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